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1] OVERVIEW

Group snapshot

Revenue

Revenue has increased by
over 82% in the last 3 years
from £390m in 2020 to
E712m in 2022

Energy generation

Our renewable energy
assets produce enough
energy to power over
a million UK homes

Number of employees

We ermploy over 1,690
people

Carbon offsets

Qur renewable energy sites’
carbon saving is over 822,600
carbon tonnes this year

Number of lqéns
Over the year we
provided financing to, on
average 182 borrowers
in the UK

Number of sites

We own 220 renewable
energy sites spread
predominantly across
the UK
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Chief Executive's review
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Ciar Qaroup was in

a
ne lcocrdown resgo
SUSNEss nas contnued 1o perrorm robustty
throughout the year This year has seen some
orecasted Jrowte in value of cerair d'visions:

prirmaniy drwer* by tne increase

Fern or tegetner
wtn ks subsidiaries ‘the G

growih (¢ smarerc.ders ov

Trading Lrnuaed ("the Comzany”

SURT) targets consistent
term, with &
this is
alengimq

zr the :ong

foocus on steady and predictacle growih,

parucuwiaryy irmpo ant durng more

cConomic conditions We nave a dversifed a

miature busiress npehil

COMPOses moe than 7% comparies taat have
on

genarating

awed In s

range o SECtors ovar many years

Heimalvig

steady .ong-term growtn
¥ 4

We Dn=zrate in cgsertal seciors that

sharenolders

we expecl o pe'z‘orﬂ" sieaaly through markes

yCiattty

Frommn this secure base we nave Deen able 1o add
neremental expansior ang diversiic rna
measured way throusgh seexing cut oonortunities in
a2 dJPlC’:“T sectors Triese eciors orovide us
wiin @ platform o continue (o expana in ire w.tn

our existirg strategy. Today, olr Group ccr‘mprises
erergy, property lendn
2 BLale
to Le a signifcart pres
estabished sectors, sroducng £ 2% of the UK's
Gy and 1.7% of the 1UK's on

. Fealthcare infrastrucrure,

ficre and hoLse aIng Givisions.

e have grown

~Ce witnin cur rrost

shicre wrd

energy output, and bullding a £36

solar en

(I)
Lf)

7RG

med-Ur term lending pusiness trat facilitates the

rrigrovenr.enl of hormres

constructio

nand

vered 10% gro

artrs, wel ahead o ou

of 4% grow'th cer annuT

[~e extrrac-dirary grows

abie o our emergy QIvision, whicn Fasg

penaitied from a sigrincant increase n long-term
e

erergy pree forecasis and erergy ‘orwars rates
over the gencd, In adzinen o nftanon. Tris

INCrease n v 5100 weas

erformance across

all seciors arnd some = Crg ~ic growth ronewer

SECIONT.
We rernain 2 supportyve employern wiik riore than

1,690 full-time sta® acros the pusinessas that we

operate. anc indirect errploymen:

r hundro
contracts trat we fave In olzce,

QW anc

provided ‘o s more ceopie through

A reflection on our year

55 raisss EAC4Arn from investors tris year

decvered consisient reves ues whiie g’owmg capital
depioyment, resditing 't E7L2m i reven
CL425my s

£2.838mr

roup (202

The fnancal 513
operatng proht b
expeotad oulcome of 3 small accownt ng profil. Thig

ternents for the y

ar sNow an

re tax of £43m against our

robusl performancs is a direct resuls of ernsrgy

precuced by the croup be-g sold ‘or igher

rCes

dunng the year Airnost 6% of our bus ness
Comgrises renewabie eergy generating assets such
dfarms,

Theaze are intertionally

as solar erergy stes and win whica orov de

Ng-term reven.e sireams.
Laate

diversifies acress & range of t estom

w
0
O
)
Q
0
\o

against poor pedformancs ir 3 spec-ﬁc sector and

contrbute towards steady

growth, however ther valuc
by chianges = pricing and dermard

Consecutive and maiena:
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Ll

mar<ets and starting Constracicn on a arge win

farmi in Ausirada. Al the start of the year we added
rure additional sites W our reserve power division
whnch brings us up Lo 26 sites ntetal {compared to
2021 Trese sites have
pericrmed ahezd of expectalion:, genearat.ng

EBTDA of 226rn (2021 £1mi during the year,

ten sies for most of

sushed biomass
division continues 1o sez'forrr- well and has

Qur successfiul and wel-est

delivered stable returrs since acquisiton in 2025
This year, | nave been particularly pleased 1o see
Srong pericrmarce al our newast Liomass siten
Snmetterton, East Anglia, whicrh was acquired i April
valuahle addinen to the
business. Dunng the year we purchased a Was

2021 proving to be a
/
to-Energy facility currently unger construchior in
Ayrshire The facility has been in developmer
trree years and wil be capabie of processing over
185600 tonnes per annum of Non-recycan
hotusehold, commercial and rdusirial wasie wihich
waouid otrerwise e sert 1o lan
This will generate 17 Mie

Y5 or exported

of low carbon electrcity,
encugit 10 power 30,000 hornes. It wilt be the first
large-scale. sunsidy free waste- tryeaergy project in
westerr Sm)tand and projecied ¢
in earty 2024

ompletior date is

Over recent years, many of our energy assets have

been under constiruction which has contributed o
our previcusly rencrted accounting losses This s

ng growih pna

typical of cuch businesses dun
ever wher cash generative, gpecause firance costs
depreciation

exceeded revenues. This division has now reacned

nd accounting \'.lﬂaﬂ]ES, such as

Gur target size and secicr split

Accordimgly tnic yesr | arm peased to renort an
accounting profit bef
budgeted smiall ac
larger thar expe

ore tax of £48m aganrst our
_cuntmg proft This shghtly
cted prohtis dus o the matunty of
the portfolio and higner erergy prices, resulting i
increasas revenua from our energy div sion as well
a5 an increase in inflation (as explained below).

sntntie

NEHL

r property lending busiress rnaxes up arcund
7”/ of the Group znd comprises short and medium

termm secured loans to expenenced property

rofegsionals. This establisned part of cur pusiness
ontinued © perform wetl, foliowing a snort penc

[A e

of slow dowr curing Covia-19 when we
intentionally chose to write fewer

lcan bock was 187 loans this year 10 UK borrowers

Our lenaing division has always ooerated at
sl

(Delow 70%] in
crder that @ mamtains access (o valuable securily of
e

tnere s a reduc

consarvative loan to valle level

tion In property vaiues y
has served tne GroLp well ance inceglior 12 years
300, and 7 has operated through

ob penods of chiange
severag, trnes The Group s ta<ing a

natlrgisy
caulious approach wher assessng new lending
opporiunites in ight of the cnanging econom:c
outlook To date, the Group has lent £2 2bn of
property loans since inception in 2010, suffer ng
only E&rn in capital losses Trus strong track recera

is the rezult of our caraful rr oroacr nthis sector,

Uty and wilingness 1
reduce activity 1 this sector during times of
economic uncertamnty. We will contnue 10 agont

s aporoacs throughout the coming year.

The heathc
Group and iz broadly performing wel. Cur

are dwision rnakes up around 4% of the

retirerment vitlages business, Range’ord Heoldirgs
Limited {"Rangeford”l continued to sell apartments
ai three sites, commencec construction of a fourth
vidage ir Chertsay, and acquired a hftn 1ccat'on
near Cambridge during tre year. Sales at the
Chrertsey site are expacied 10 commence in 2024,
whi le construction at the Cambricge site 15
exnecred 1o startin 2023 witn the first sales
comrmencing in 2026

Our fibre divisicn was establisned in 2019 and
remains an area of growth for the Group, now
compnrsing of six operating busnesses. Qur
resdential businessas, Jurassic Fibre, Swise Fibre,

lcars our avera ge
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o.nts Fibre are pulding uitrafsst

pmrmse;'bfoqd and netwaorks in

e UK whn.ch have been overloo

2

ked by
¥ 1O

ej onz of

connedc
L

larger oneratars (hgarer orovides

“omes end nusiresses across the U

ard Joenreacn infrasructure and Virdfl s a software

development companry which has deve.opad

aro ryice
Providers 10 el Connadiivily «

networks, iIncludng Alipoints =

U

o providirg connectivity w

crietary software to allow Infernet Se
over whiclezale enaled
bre Vorboss g the

rerprise fibre network 1o fo
BUSINESSEs 1IN LoNacn

Cd

1]

K's only aedicated er

(

I the year, cur resiaenual fibre businesses

continued ¢

[T

e

renworks 10 fhe o

Southiwest of Enalard, ardg are now orboarcing
CUSLOmMers o their networks, gonerat'cg recuriing
reverues for the Groun Ou.f g -of-trhe-art

ustomer demand for

retwaorks are able o maet
doaric

migher brea |
front ho

More woring-
video-on-demans sery, in Lonao

¢ bold ard has

ces

50 contrued 1Shalia
a cormmitment o offer 1W0Ghos

im Central Lordon

HERT Y iig|

OC businessas

SOCkrm of A
@]

v

e

fiore to up fo 1D,
by 2027

Whrlst our fibre daasion remiams in a growth chase
for e rext 3-5 years we do not expect it e report

an gocountrig prodr,

Towards tre end of the year, we added a new
Dronerty des eta'J 7 10 e Groug, with the acouisiion

cf Euvia Homes |

omeg i London comrruter [ewnl and

=5
Wiz thes regresents a very sman pan 2f the

SIET IO Grows T & mMigasaren /VE%_\/ over

Inflation and interest rates

The hugher rate of inflation exgenenced this year

ras been resoonsibie for scme of the
cutgerformarce aganst expectatans i the
Compary's share cnce BM Treasury forecast that

ntunti 2025, &
Gre reveriue for

energy divsion, and
that

as a

o

—t
&

<)

'ﬂig\ﬂef value from the government subsidies

some of our erargy sites nenefit frarm, ,ag-ng
he va s However, a short period o

qigh nftat on such as forecast has very Hitle effect

[l

N e rate at v
Ths e p

W e

2 Group

xpacted 10 arow

vacadse the re

detive ther vaue Torm scou 20 future
cashftows over tne tme Iney are expected ©
sperae for typcally 20 years o miore, 1T e
Q. c‘@l/r’ long-term inflaton were 1o Increase, the
rnact on our share price shoutd be positve
itwoultincrease the rever ue each of our
\d expect o make, i contrastic &
Sxed cost basa
The expectad roe i nterest rates is forecast w
=larn to nermal after & signidcant penod of very

v rates. The immediate irpact of this an our
DUSINGST IS expeciee 1o be broasty reutal smce
our Group 15 intentonaily stiruciured so as nol to
gxperes ce sigrificant vahue erosion when irtercat
rates change We Contriae WO take a canticus
approach within our tendimg business where the
fising interest rates are felt maore closely, ard we
Fave the abilty (& educe e number of loans
W Wrile, Gr alrer ne sk orofile of our lcans

throudn reducing 12an [ vatue "alios of DaUSs
I gaertan cant e

ETeRY

feel aporonrate
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Current trading and outlook

Since the yaar end, the Group has continued to
perform steacily from an coeraticnal perspective
and in line w.ih our expectations aloel we have
seaen share price growth ahead of target due to the
continued NCregse N long erm energy orice
forecasts. Qur growth targets for the Groun over
the rredium and long term rernain unchanged, and
we continge (o focus on mairtaning a diver<ifierd
cusiness tnat is capasie of delivenng more

presictacle growtr for sharenolders

The recently arnouncea Eectriaty Generator Levy
"EGL witnin the 2023 Frrance B, wi. have an
impact on the returrs generated from our energy
portfolio over the next 5 years, Trig s further
discussed in the growp finance review on page 27

Cur property iending business continues (o
perform strongily, with increased ceploymeant in this
sector snce the yvear end, We fccus on short term
ioans {our average current ican rerm is 17 monrths)
which enaties us 1o adagst to crarnges in cuilook
swiftly, we fecl this s particularly Important in the
currert economic climate.

Performance in our heathasre division continues
1o be stable, and we continue to reman positive
about the ocoporiunites ta improve serformance in

this sector

Since year £nd, we have continued 0 build ou cur
fiore networ<s, with corstruction tracking in tne
with our expectatcns We cortinue 1o review
opportunites for both orgaric and irorganic
growth supportng our ex.:ing nmanagement teams
n delivenng this strategy

n December 2022 we Fave acguired the rights o
£25m of right to use mobile icenses from Three
I thus makrg the first step towards cecomirg an

FrOsie YIrtUa: metwork cperator,

Cur v of business areas has deve.cped over ime
and may evolve further over tne years anead, driven
by the overarchuing rmportance we pace on
rreetng the opjectives of our sharenolders. Tnis
snould not be reac as any ndication of a whaolesale
change ir the sectors in which we operaie, but as a
reftecuor of tne role payed by the strategic
rrandate in protecing shareholders’ interests

"Our mix of business areas has

leveloped over time, driven by

the overarching importance
we place on meeting the

objectives of our shareholders.”




Our business at a glance

What we do

Fern Trading Linited ("Fern’) 1s the parent comipany
of neary 320 subsid anes (together dwe "Group’). Ou
Group operates across five kay areas erergy,
healthcare, lend:ing, fbre and house bullairg. Over

the past fwelve yea's we have bull a carefully

diversified group of operat ng businesses inat are
well posticres to deliver tomg—Terrn value and

redictaole growith for our shareholders.

1. Energy division

We generate cower from sustanable sources and

sell the erergy produced either directly toindustr al

consumMers O 1¢ arge networks Many of oor

renewanls energy sites quakfy for governnant

addiniona, o
S our L)(F_)pr‘lu;. ~

MCCrves, mhrh r:‘r'emht ar ree of

income, We have alsc s

renewalle energy to construst facliies for zale or

zd

onQoing opeation At year end ne Group ”

21 sites under construct

2. Healthcare division

We orovide homes and leisure facilites (o our

age rg popdlaton, and onvale hosnita:s which

ita
prov‘de nigh-guzlity neslthcare services aCross

operatona: sites n the UK

3. Lending division

We lend on a shors and rmedium terrm, secured

4. Fibre division

We own and Opera*ﬂ fore oroadband retworks
fine UK wWe buid the
them to homes and

~elworks a

ousinesses W custorners warn ultra®ass

fiore broadonand

5. Heme building division
During the year we succassfully enteqed the house
builaing sector, af_qu\r:r’]fj Elrea biornes whech has a
strong track record of ceveleping homes in 3
sustamable maraer The cor'ﬁpaqy 15 8 ful -service
rrcan ng it provides services
rmg and
CONSLCUDN W ensore e desvery

property deve ooer,

from the design, to tre enginee “hen firal

of cuaaty
warkraanssip

Selar, wind,

) Property lending, Retirement Ultrafast fibre ) .
lat;:g;%aszg development villages, private broadband across Resﬂ;:{;llqhouse
gas. financing hospitals the UK g

reserve power

e e area
VL L [ lelas

Taorstrucior Docratonal Conuracton
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Our business at a glance

Ihe strength of our Group's straiegy is in ool s
operaticnal civersity and the reiurn profie of thesa
busiresses Cur lend ng business provides flaxibiiiny
NG strong returns over the shaort ferm, while cur
eriergy, healthcare, fbre and nome buldirg
divisions offer vis bility ard stabilty

the longer term.

of returas over

Tre scale of our busness § a key strength, enabling

S to acauire large-scale esraplizhec operat ors as

WwOSECTOrS with

wel as tne cpportur t/ to enter ne
minral risk 1o the who'e G

arodp by selecting

Sector split’

Wind 22% —.

Saolar 20% 7

Reserve power 6% -7

Cther 3%

M M Owning and operating assets 69%
M E Lending 31%

Sector splitis given By vaue, as represented on the

Fern's sector
allocation

company balan

busmesses w N comprehansive business plans and
strong rmanagement teams Tnis enables us to
continue to diversify our pusness withour
comprormisng or the qualty of our operatcn

Over the past three yaars, we have successfu:ly
entered the abre oroadoand sector and we now
own Six companies with exciting p.ans to delvar
ultrafast broadbanad aCross the U

Healthrare 1%

- Sroperty 27%

- Reserve power 2%
—Solar 1%

~ Fibre 5%
- - Heafthcare 4%

~-Landfill 3as and iormass 9%

ce shest of Fern Trading Limited
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Our business at a glance

Whare we operate

We gre proud that the businesses
witn1 our Group rmaxce a uestive

contnipution 10 society. frem

generating clean energy to e ,i_
creztion of hores and the provisicn

of quality heatncare infraztruciure 1}\ !

Solar srres
Landsll gas fazuties
BIOMmMass sower 31at O3

wind farms

Reserve powes piart

[5)

Retirernent vi.aJyes

ORE- @

Hospita:s

=
t

Fibre matworks

A5 we've grown our expertise i ThEse seciors ithe UK we've beer abe to use wur inGustry krowleage 1o

take oLr axpertise o exciting oppourities Syerseas. including Consrucing sslar and wnd fares n

Ausirabia, Frarce, refang, Poard a~d Finland
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Our business at a glance

Making a difference

We are proud to operate a Group tnat makes s
POSs Ve CoNbution 1o scaety across the UK,

g ewable ene gy, providing quaiity
healtncare infrastraciare ana retirement ivin g ard
delivering high-speed proadbana 1o Lnderserved

)

gererging ren

areas of the couniry

Energy

We currently owr 22U emergy sites, oroducng
ZT750CW a year
a milien nemes

Trats ericugh e v IO power over

Cur combinaticn of technologes: sclar wing,
raserve power, DIornass and landfill gas
complement each otner well helping the UK to

meast its enaergy targets irrespectuve of the weatner

The fern Commun'ty Furais a social enterprse -un
by the Growp, which works to distnbute comerunity
funas generatad from aur wnd farms. This year, the
Fern CormmuJanty Fund has awarded £EL04m to local
commiLniity groups, supportea 12 ocal university
students through our Student Scholarskig Fund,
and provideo a wirter fuel subsidy t© 704 res.dents

who are local to the Group's assets

Healthcare

Oy retirement villages provide Fighi-guality,
contemporary living spaces, with 379
accommodat-on unts currently in place, and
schemes in various stages of developrment offering

over 500 additional accommaodation urits

A frierdly community is at the heart of nur
retirement villages, which 1s wiy in cur
developments we provide central facilities ana a
hub of socal activity for our residents

Lending
Tre loans we made dunng the year have relped to
fund the construction of studerit 2cco mmoddtmr

and much reeded residential propert

We continue 1o extend loanrs to 24 taxi drnivers and
fleels 1o enable thern o use electno vehicles,
reducing carbon ermissions In our capital.

Fibre

Through our Abre division we are £ ool e
ne UK Four
of cur managemen: teams are focussed on

building out fibre optic broadband et

fibre optic hroadband retwork acro

wOrks for
res\der‘:;\a\ custorers ard smail businesses, and 2
fth is building a fhre network to aeliver enterprise
conneciivity Our sixth s a software developmen:
COImiparny hperafmq rythe fipre secior and

?'C'J'U"\Q Servic Lo QU groln COmMY panies.

Within thiz div sion we have plans o create a
network provid ng connectivity to over one millic
properties in the next three years, many of wich

are in small towns and villages tha. don't currently

have access 1o internes connectivity fit for modern

ways of working and cormmunicanng

Not anly are our fbre businesses bringing
cornectivity to underserved communities, they are
also generaling employment oppﬁr*umt es for
young mdw:uua!s via training academ:=s and
apprenticeship
Telecoms, with one of cur compars having

schiernes, and are drniv ng diversity in
launchen a number of initiatives Lo recruil women
into the sector.

Home building
Cur home buiidng d-

cn atiises a righ

proportion of sustanable umeer frame construction

merhods and instalis air source heat oumps i all
properties, tead;ng the way in this secior and
carbon emssions

helping reduc

1 Ci;{li




Our strategy in focus

Our businesses
Energy
I'hrougk cur energy divizion, the Group owns and

oDerates eners s wiveh sup

e

tectncity Irto the nefwork, as wel, a5 Constrachng
/'
O

renewacle C—ﬂercy sites for future sale
energy sites

Lwe own ara operate, 194

renewable energy, contnbunrg 1o the Groug's

as one of tne largest producers of
renewab!e erergy from commecial scale soiar sites
i the LK Ererg:/ nes are typicaily expeciad to

ga nerate s

O'\N'"'H’\Ci and operat.na Tese businesses s attracTve

ble profitz for many years, ag such

> the Groun becaase of ther potentis.

predictakbie pmﬁts over the long

Rerawatie energy 5 ate power fram

sustamatle scurces ana sell energy produced etner

directy to

irge Ndustngy Consummers or 1o the

retwork. Many of our rerewable energy s.tes also

Guabfy for govercrmient reentives, which resulis in 4
portor of tne gpf rated eﬂerg‘y‘ berehtng flom

i b o
rates i

cified pericd once
> i< ope rauomﬂ and accreditaton Ras

a quasfy:ing
peen granted Tnis kas reduced zorme of the impact
of the volanuty in long-term crargy price forecasis

As mew sites oLslt e the U do net guaafy for

FH510nc - goverrmient incertives, we are STEiTy mMioe

nerest in the rmarket o1 sites hke the oros o we own

Chwning and operating erergy s..es s a core part of
au” Strategy and currently makes up alrrast 80% of

the Groun's net assess Trus part of our Group has

Did you know?

generated ighes reiurns this year thar exopecied
diue to mar<et condrtions bul cruciady & has the
nolental 1o urovide

stable rewrns over the long-

term Tris combnation s <ey to cur strategy o
Y g

Dalance sk anc refum across the range of Grous

acuvines (o gonerate warget returns for srarghclders.

“Qur energy sites generated over
3,750 GWh of power.”

Duc 1o the migh-guality energy sites we own, we
care ! ﬂg -term francing from

“orepehtve rates 1o enhance
&

510 geliver the leve! of

SLOported Dy resenve power Qlaﬂ;z which provide
oackup powes to Tne Matonal Grd Tre Group
therefore berelts from diversificaton with.r this
part of its husiness, srnce weaker conatians for

¢ prodactio
nostronger producton elsewhere Tr‘e Groap alse
213 s grincant Senefit from its scale 0 tnis sector

55 Our Dutiress ¢ soraad aoress over 220 skes,
vastly reduc ng toe nsx o Group profanility f ore

site sufers an cosrational ¢ sruption

if laid end to end, our solar
panels would stretch from

London to Mexico City.

nfrorn one tecrno.cgy cften resyls
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Our strategy in focus

Ir addition W our UK sites, the Group is developng
sites overseas, ir JJariscictionrs that we understand
vell These preser: an attractive opportunity as they
busld on our sector expertise i countries at an
carlier stage of renewable development Curranily
we operate wina farms in Ireland and France and
solar stes in France and Australia We nave several
wind sites under construct’'on in Poland, France

and Australa

ouring the year we acquired |
d crie cnergy frormn wasle site Follewirg

FiNe reserve power
planis an
constructior., we sold twao wind farms in ~inlard and
shortly after the year end we also sold Darlirgton

Pori, & large solar site in Australia,
Healthcare

Trroucn odr nea
operatas in the pr'vate rnecical a

lthcare division, the Group

nd retiremant tiv ng
sectors QOur retirery
owns and operatas two retirement villages in
Wiltshire ang Nor
aeveloping three furthe

ent livirg business, Rangeford,

thYerksbhire and s currently
siies for future operations

QOur private medical busirecss, Cne Healthcare owne
Ig!

and operates two private hospita Kent and
Hertfordshire, providing the very oest level of care

in moden, well equippea nosptal facilties

Since returning to normal working patterns we have

wn

oan an increase in the numbper of patients pay g
o ther own treatment as they face long waiting

T

sts faor MNHS treatment. Despite the Lfting of

wicespread restnictions across e UK, Covid-19
contnues to affect the acute care sector with a
stressed NRS and increase

Mmeasures trat rerraim in piace

Lending

Lending continues to be 3 core part of our business

and has previded the Group witn a profitable and
cash generative secior over The past twelve years

d part of cur Groug mainly

This well-estabiishe
of property (e
short-terr financirg 1o
procerty dever‘.opers‘ buy-to-let land.oros 5ee§<mg
bridgirng finance;
which provides shc
to comoanie

corsists encing, which provides

o oexgenenced professionsl

na developrrent financing,
2 and mediur term financing

A key benefit of the scale of our Group and of the

pusiness that we nave b ilt ip N tnis sector is our
ability to mit gate rsk tirough having a large
number of short and madium term loans sgread
aeress small proecis o ndvidual borrowers, We
proacively manage counterparty risks througn
urwdertakmg careful horrower due dilgance, akng

"Lending continues to be a

important part of our

business and has provided
the Group with a profitable
and cash generative sector

over the past twelve years.
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Our strategy in focus

secur;ty over asgers typically on a first chiarge nasis
aining conservative [can-to-value ratics.
rs will perform as expected a
relp to mirimise the \'mpac: of
performance swues on an inagividaal ican This:s
further rmbcza:ef‘ througn the vaiuc that we lerd to
can book,
55 182

endividozt loan of £2 3m

ndividual corrowers, relative o our tatal L
whlch s Currertly spread on average acro

lhans, with an averag
Fibre division

Our flore
companies bulding Shre retworks in the LK and

cvisior Incl.des five operational

cne software development compar Iy.

Throwyh cur residential Filore ous

Suilaing new physical Tbre networss

commurites in the UK and so f
filyre infrastrucrure 1in underserves
Somersel, Dorset, Wiltshire, Ha

Worcesersnrs ginad tro Home

Arng WO Pass over ane mikon h

next nres years.

Bu.ding these large networks imvelves cornecting
arge datacentres ang telephone exchanges in the
U with homes
replacing tne ¢

half of

Giganet are verticaly integraied,

and busmesses, effectively

pper wires that were 1313 in the first
the 20th r_emtuy Jurgssiz, Swaish anda
as they coth own
the Aore infrasructure and 4:30 nave the erdg

customer relat onship as the nterret service

T Allpcints owns fore infrastruciure

1o sell connactvity to tre end customer

Throcugh Yorboss, we are b.mdmg a netwar<in

London 1o suoply business-to- Dusingss ('B287)
enterpree Connect \-.f|ty dI'E’C[ o ous Ness

customers. Yorbes Nas instatled over 500k of
fibre ootic cables in London since 2020 ard has
ecently launched a s
recogrisitg that ambitious Lendon

ngle i0Gbps product ©

CLEINES

=well guickly require more than tne 1Gops
conrechivity they've relied on 1o date.
We nave seen rapid crowth in ouwr ore civisicn

dwision to ontirue

srce 2018 and we expest
te hecome aaarger part ©f Sur pusiness over trre,
The Croup expects t© spend agproxmaely Elon of
cepral py 2025 o fulal itz buld plans and reach
Toe commulies inneed ¢f Ll

rrafast broadoand,

Home building
Cur new Nomie buldGing business, ivig s a Tull
service bousenuldor, acguinng and, deve.cping the

ste, and subsequently selirg the nhomes 10

ndiydual buysrs These sites include a mix of open

2 and strive o deliver

rnarkat and afferdable rou

dratcnal homes The cusiness 1§

migh auatly asg
grow-ng fast with projected arnual turnover of
E250mm and £

withirn the next 2-3 years

600 houses oult ger year forecasted

boaru other ISP @ the Allgoints network
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Directors

The experienced Board of Directors for the Fern Group are responsivle for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company's
business activities to sharehclders. They have a set of complementary
commercial, energy sector-related and strategic skills

Paul Latham o0 cwouhe

Paul 15 Chief Executive of Fern ard 15 responsitle for the day-to-day rurining of the
busiiess He s also a managing direcior of Oclopus nvestments _irmited (OI7,
where ne has work@o since 2005 Ol s a ey sucpler of rescurce ang experhse
to Fern Paul's dual role ensures that thes reiationsin works ef‘ectiveiv ara in the
pestirteres:s of Fern's shareholders Paul has had varous general management

ard irternal consultirg roles across a nurmber ¢f seciors ard brings with burm

3 wealth of industry ard

e, WS Helth Willey o Taer s
: & Heitn s an associate orofessor of swaiegy ard entreprereurchip at Londo
Busiriess School He aiso nolds various ron-executve directorships anc advisory
reles at Figh growth and more mature companies, In nis role as non-executive
crairman he s responsiole for the effecive operatior of the Board, as well
as its governarce. He onngs to the Fern busmess independent commeerc:al
experence ganed from his time in academ:a, private eutty nvestment,
consulting and various nands-on operationa: roles.

Pater Barlow o Txeo ey

Peter nas cver 30 years’ expenence in ntemational fFnanang of infraslructure and energy.

Az a serior executive for Irternatonal Power, Peter was responsible for arranging over
512bn of praect and corporate furding, as wel as banking relauonshps and treasdry
actvities, e has spent over 20 years working internationally for ASBC, Bank of
Armenca ard Nomura, financing acqguisiions and greenfield projects in the energy
and infrastructure sectors. His combination of Board-level firarcing and energy
CUPErerce over TLImerous energy sun-sectors, and his al-rourd knowledage of
all the sectors v wiich Fern operates, adds scrificart value (G the operation of
the Board as wel as its strategy formation and deploy™er:

Ty Sethor 00w S0 LT

T'mos a chartered accountant with more than 25 years international expenence

as a finance director of both public arnd private companies. Initaly he worked

for Price Waternouse in Birminghnam and Cricago. More recently he was Chief

Financiai Cficer of Lightsource Renewabie Energy Lta, a global leader in the
fanding, deveicpment ang long-term operation of solar photoveltaic projects.

Tim brings extens've financial and accountancy <nowledge to the Board a3

well as an understarding of dynam.c techrology businesses ganed from his
xecutive positons
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Principasl risks

Ma".agerrem identify, asz I Tne principal nsks trat the Group are exposed o
assoclaed with the Sroup's busir are descrbies beow, along with the mitgating
strategy. Risks arize from extarnal sources, those acnors we take o reguce the potental mo:

which are nherent cormrnerciat nsks in the rearket, the rsk We aiso inciude our aszessment of whether

the ikelnood of e s

or ramaingd The same

and frorm cperaucnal nsks contaned within tne
systems and processes employed within the
busirness Gverall ¢

exposure i managed across
the Groun tnrough the diversifation of activities,
hoth by sector and geography.

Energy Divlsson

Risk Mltlgatsons

Market risk: « Cortracts are ertered mnto which ﬁx tre . mcome far a
Tre energy seCtor 1S esper portion cf the znergy genesaied by cursies
sigrificant wrbulens « Lang-term goverrment backed offtare agreements are

ik

i place such as the Renewat e Obligstior Certitcaton
(1 =2OC scnems 207 of cur 2nergy moirie was

2 RO revenua.

\-v-f“ the gove

y M*r{ﬁ'g Ok

a rizk that forecas
are rniwt achieved dus ¢ chang
wriolesale erns orices, off-take
contracts Sr government subsidies,
Due to s wrbulent envrcnmers,

the poential for increaned

2l te Offine of Gas and
0 cortrbute to an ndustry voice
TG Gy FRGLITETIeITS. Gus o market

irterver.don by the regulator is aiso nstability)
TS,
Charges i Governmer? ooy
may resut in reduced ncocre
streams w(hw the group due to
addio l;a 23
Operat:onal rlsk o Urpred ctablity of the weathe s mitgated tnrgugn
Levels of energy produced may divaersifoation of irchnclog et and lonaion of sies
be lower than anuc.psted aue 1o e Regular serviC ng O assels i undertaken 1o ensure a ferg m
gu"“fcpuma\ weatner condiiore are kept n gooo condiicn and murm e the nsk tig
or performance ssues whin as3ets are unavalable for a lorger cencd Mo change

4

‘mCrezsed

Wovca

rmr th
e har mMoverterts:

’:r”\ 1
Construction risk; o The Crouperten: fxed prce Contracis witn contactorns
Corstraction of ine sites takes » d XGOSLIE O NOreEsing CosEs s
l>nger or s rore Costly than
anucpated due o resource Mo change

auailabiity or
raw marenais
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Risk Mltlgatlons Change

Market risk:

Expecten sz ustomers

are lowear *h al mt sipated due to
creased competition from other

T

i
-
I
=
3
o

vour ot arger

Lla ampact cur ablity
ed develoomenrt,
reducmg revenues and eficercies

ganed fromr a ‘arger DrESErce N &
DarficLlar a

]

Constructlon r:sl(
Consoructon of the networi
takes longer ar 15 more costy
than anucipated dug o rescurce
avalabelty or increased cost of
raw rrateria.s.

Operational risk:

Network service is interrupted or
urreliab.e leading to potentiat loss
of customers and reputational
damage.

« Management regularly reviews the -"O"r‘:pf-‘ﬂt‘\fe ‘andscace

N target buld areas W ensure plans do not cenfict witn
other adternative nebwork operators,
. Iwamagemem engages proacively with the Ofhce of
Commumcanoas and the Government (o ensure the

penehts of sma:iler operatars are well understoog and its

interests are approprately represented.

We are an actve partcipant in relevant ndusiry bodies,
partcuiarly those representing alternative network
operators,

¢ The Group has contracted with a number of different

suppliers to reduce the expaosLre to ,nny ore ndiv:dual
antty Sewcton of outsource partners i managed
through a detailed procurernent Hrof ess with long term
visibility of worki alowing partners to plan franciat and
pecple resources accorcingly

« Where suptly chain protiems are expe ted for critical

stock of fibre,

ems our teams generally have 6 ns
advance crder

mon
cuct and other mater-als an handg, an
j 1

d
technicai equiprment witn leng le t ime

L’ ]

« Ournetworks are built in a resiient way with diverse

route options should & falure ccur :n one route

This, comrbired witn an ability to identify and resolve
connactivity Bsues guickly, minmises downtire of the

e
;g,; S

R

Increased
{due to more
competicrs in

the marke

‘ncreased (due
toncreasng
cdemand for

re$0.rce in
the sector as
a.lermative
rietwork
providers scale
el

fonad

Mo change




Rlsk

Market nsk

incressing inflation and interest
rates lead 1o a market-wide
af‘hroau\ ity issue, re:qmmg ina
grop n proparty values aoross al
re of reaiestate Thus
ImMpact cur atlity TO recover a
lzan in ful through a refimance

orsale

ln
@

Counterparty risk:

Loans may be made o unsuitabe
counierparties, impastng our
aoly WO reCcaver e man balan
17 “ul

Risk
Market rlsk (Healthcare and
Home Building):

A fall v house orices could
imipact cur ability to generate
expected revenue from the sale
of grgr‘m:ntc i our retirement
“Haa S anNo houses Dt “/ Elwvea

' Healthcare/Home Sullding Divisions - '

Mltlgat:ons

e eEe w A afeines TrmemEe % ovxex

. Th" tearns pro-gctively r ﬂanag CUI DGSIEon i the
marketplace and ars prepare
aloan moves ntc cefault.
» Cur loans are rade at cor
ranos with a raximury: &

Voot 7“/

ecLed 3ga.nst physical underhying securty,
over r%p props rt; o ciner assets of the

e dilgence ¢ performeg onorte writrg

) mt_.ucmg property or lard vallatons 37d areat
Checks cone on Dorrowaers

» Wnere lcans are

tores and o

consruction
overarts are put ir place to ensure
2sng furtiner drawdcwns

rewritten for assets unds

e o

Mltlgatwns

. Dtarwrw rg CONserts on urdeveiop
maximise revendes ard educe the ris< of 1o

ed lard are

Construction risk (Heatthcare
and Home Building):
Constraction taxes lorger or

5 mere <ostly than @

G o rescurce avalablty or

rticicatec

ncre ased cosof raw rV" er s

Health and Safety rlsk
{Healthcare):

The p-’c«‘ eruon of mjury or
: sofifeof car

futMmiast modrtanice

W W

]

¢y
T
(6]

. 1?“@ Cmua erters fxed prce contracts wne

1O redUce expOsUre WO inCreasing matena, £os's
« The Group only worss witn reputabie 3rc parties with a
strong track recora of deverng sirmilar pro ects

+ The Group maintans rebust po)l edur
relgirg O e 0rov Sio

FrQLgr cordaching regaar rter NS, AN

A0 SUCIECT G extar~al nsnechor ¢y 0od
o Tre Groun Ras rsurarce olcies Tover
Anancial Iogses due o megica m g

Change

wrgre reeged if

SCONorns
clirmate)

V‘."-‘ review th s

Mo

sy
foot

change
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Risk
Market risk:

Anincrease o pase rates rray
ricrease oosts on debit facilines
~

imeacting the Grouo's amdiny 10
service debi 2s 1t falls aLe

qumdtty risk:

Poor management of cash within
the Group coLld megact tne
Group's ability 1o meet culigations
as they fa’l due

Health and Safety risk:

The safety of our embloyees
and those 2mooyved through
contracts are of paramaount
migortance There s g rsk that
accidents e workplace could

”(‘au't ins

rinus njury o death

Cyber Secunty risk:
An attack on our IT systems and
data couid lead ¢ disrupaon

of cur operatiors and loss of
customer data Loss or rmisuse
of data may result in reputational
damage, reguiatory acton under
GOPR and potentia fires.

The strategic report was approved b

PS Latham
Director
16 December 2022

Mrt;gatlons Change
e S SV
« Whiere floating rate debt < in place (wherg mterest var es
nline with an underiying bercamark rate), the Group
enters inte hedging arrangermerts o fix a porton of these Increased

Own oedv afed rescurce Fo' IT ahd Jﬁﬁurity

wayrerits throughout the term of the fac.ity. Hedging
arrangements are outined ir Note 21 of the financ al

Ctarer‘r‘e. 1CH

A detaileg cash flow for stis propqred and reviewesd

oy nﬂanﬁgemem ona mortr‘ ly basis, ncorparating ¢ash
pility and cash requirements across the Group. Onal

a quarterly basis this s shared with the Boa-d.

The Group meritors bank covenants on an ongorg bas:s

to ensure continued adherence © covenants YWhere

covenarts can't be met, “orecasts are upfjamd o the
loweer cash avalasie as a result of the restnctio

The Group has a fiexuble finance facilty whwch can pe

drawr on at snort notice to meet iIrmmediate cusiness
rieeds

hieaith and safet/ oolcies in
across the Group 1o ensare

e WCL beirg o*‘ our staff
Healtn and safely rainng s o
confractors o1 3 regu.ar basis.

sroveded to our staft and

We emmploy a Chief informaton Security ut“r‘cr 1507
w0 15 responsible for data secur ty across the Group and
reports quarterly to the Soard.

Tre CISG works closely with cur bugnesses to ensurs
adecuate standaras of security and informauon
rmanagement are met.

Each of cur busineszes that ko

id customer data has their

foid
BB

No charge

g

4

Increased

No change

e Board of Directors on 1€ December 2022 and signed ¢ its behal® by:
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Corporate governance

Section £72 {1 statement

The Bo
req;;irements of
2004 (the "Acl”),

an
~nay that would oe

ard .o that
Sectjom 172 of the Compan.es
dah
[aale

L they nave adhered © the
Act
acted in a

e, N gooad ‘aith,

Os" Mml] o promote tne
235 of the Groun for the benefit of 115 rremrbers

card to al stakeholders and

as a whole {f‘av'r‘.g e

In the performance of ks duly 1o pronaie te
muccess of the Group, the Board nas renard to 3

s, ircluding the Lkely

fary decsion: in "he long ter, and

of tme Group's ey stakenciders
ound trust and ensore it fully understands tne

potential impacts of the decisions it maxes. Tre

Board fufis these quties partly by delegaton o
commitiees ana tre boards of subs’ dary

unaertakings, who Sperate within a cornoraie

'13

goverrance frarnewsrk across thie Groud
every Board meairg a review of neaith ard

ooerational

compliarce,
cther aréas over the Ccourss f the finar
nclading the Group's business sirategy, key risks,

starehoder-related matters, aivers iy anc mdusm:y,
Slald

renta. matiers, Corporate resgonsioiiiny, ar

goverranee, compliance and legas maters

Principal decisions
We defne prinogat decisens taken by the Board as
thos

that are sicrifica

oms that are of 3 stalegqe Aature ano

S

e deds
ntto a7y Of our key stakeho.car

ps Tre 5@5@ core der that ire o lowin

tdecsions ot

Croup acquired z large scale, ready 1O Lonstruct

wend ste nAlztraia T
ategy o
cevelop reqewable energy sites which prov'de
predictable, ong-: 2

3oard consicered the opporurity and how it

deployment aligns
with the Group's <t S Contnue W

errm reveriug streams Tk

aligrea wth cur cpjectives 10 make a positive

cortrbuton 1o fne community ard ervircriment,

The Group decided 1o expand mto our rewest

n May 2022 the Group
anomes. a fuil-s

2On, Fouse outding

service property

oroy ding serv.ces from the design

o he

o ersure the de wvery of cuality workmanshic

e~girearng and ther arat construction

ot base ard erternic

Dwversfy'ng the Group's a
into this new sactor N3s heen well tnought

Cutwitr long termy growtt in mind e Board

“he strategic coparturities within the

sector beforc cec'd ng o move anead with this

Group's strateai

ol
o
@
@
9]
5

)

erm value ano predictable growth

chalders

Reviewng ard ceciding to rmove aread with

ncreas ng biomass operaticons whicn s pact of
our reriewasies duision in Cctocer 2021 tre

Group achures 2 large scale. waste-to-energy

consiruction sitein Scotland. Th s deployment

aligrs warm Tne Group's stratagy 1o contmue to

Clvers,”

v e Group, ceveloo rerewsble energy

sites witor provde predictabie, wong-term
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Corporate governance

= The board dec ded to change audit firms via a
tenoer process for the year ended 30 June 2022,
The Group had changed sigrificantly since the
previous auditors were apoointed and thersfore
we were unable 1o reliably assess the vaiue for
morey we received, Tnree firms underwenrt
the terder process and Ernst & Young LLP were
selected becauss of their strong commercizl

nderstanding of our bus tiess, efl el aud
methodolegy ard value for morey.

Business strategy
Qur business strategy 15 set cut on pages il o 14 of
tne Strategic Repori. Maragemen prepares a

detaled Group budget which s approved by the

Board on an anruzl baz:s and forms the nasis “or
tne GroLp's resource planning ara deployment
decsiers In mgkmr* decisions concerning the
rd first and
RN rqteqw focus, but afso wo other
~

F as the interests of its vanouds

e Board has rega

pusiness pla
foremost t
rmatters su
stakerolces
acnons or the G

rs ana tne long-term impast of -
Sroup’s futlure and reputation

Shareholders

Shareholder relations and qenerating sharerolder
vailke s & key consderation when the Board 1s
makirg stratesic decisions The prime rmedium Dy
which the Groun communicates with shareholders
is through the annual report and finarcial
staterments, whica aim Lo provide sharehoiders with
a fult understanding of the Group's achivities and 115
resatts Trig

rformation is publisheo on cur wepsite

at www.ferntrading.com.

Employees

The Group's employees are fundamental (G tne
overail success of the business The Directors fulfil
their dufy to employees by entrusting o
subsidiary Boards which the Chief Execut ve of the

ersight o

Group also sits on

The dr
marage the cay to day cecision making,
engagarnent and communicanons with employees

ectors of the subsidiary urdertakings

ard ensure that pecple ars treated farly and are
valued with respect to pay, benefit and condit ons
We fuily reaiise that our employess wish to be
informed and corsulted on matters affecting thair
work arnd to be involved in problem-solving
affeciing ther own arcas of interest and
responsibility. The Growp 15 firmly commetted to a

potoy of gooa commurcatcn at all levels arnd we

airr o estanlish a clirmate whick

encourages the open fi@w of mnmformation and

ideas Preserty this ncludes ronthiy tearn briefings
at a loca, level and the patlication of monithiy key
performance ndicaters covenng oLtput, ooeratng
costs, and reaith and sa‘ety

The heattn and Safety o° our ermployses in the

workgta s a contnual focus for the Groun, given
s broad operat:cnal business The Directors review
--Iealzh & Safety Regcorting at each poara meeting to
ensure approonate polc es and procedures are in
place to protect the heasth ana safety of our
emnployees and contraciers Where there gre
pctenual deficiencies or ssues, trese are followed
ap and resolved on a timely basis, with the Board

having oversignt of the acticrs taken

Tne Group outsources activities and managernent
0° certain operaticnar activties 1o external supplers
Where activities are cutsourced the Board arsures
nat tney are managed by reoutable supglers whao
rneet all the relevant industry and regulatory
cornmitments as well as traating employess fairly.
Expectec standa‘ds are documerted in all serv'ce
contracts and adherence to these are continuaily
rmonsiored by Board through their service
agreernent with Ociopus Investrments Limited,

Suppliers and customers

The Group acts ir & “air marner witk all suppliers
and custorners ang seeks to mamtain streng

busiress relationsnips with the-n Ths s achieved
by all cortracts being negotiated through a fair and

transparert tender process wnich includes

assessing the :mpact on the lorg-term obectves of

§Eas i g Rs
d Bt p




Corporate governance

the Group. We reviaw Cur payment processing

times agamst contracis every SIX MOitns 1o ensure

supghers are paid prompty and s niormaor for

the cormpary 15 avalable on the www.gov.uk

welbsite

eNsUres It ac
ers across ad dwisiors and

0y and i g transparent
manrier (o ait custom
services, and achively engages o rescive any cisputes
ne Board closely monitors custonrer

1d ergages with the managernent eam ©

raascues f business performance does
omors’ expectalions
The Board considers Octogus Investiments i tod

to be a ey business pertrér ard supgher vtk
o .

overs:ght, finu Tinstraton and cempany

cecrelanat services

Community and environment

The provisicr a~d operation of sustainakle

nfrastructure is at the centre of the Gr oup‘

Trreuzh its business aciy .

strategic go
Group s
Comrmtin ty,

eeks 1o make a positive -’;omﬁ’\ou\;oz‘\ o the
ervirenment and econonyy, Our
renewab.e erergy busness s nelping the JK rrest
Its renewsable energy targets, our private ncsoitals
have supporead tne NHS througi-out the Covid-15
panderm.c by proviging tr
MNHS pauents

caried

T otrerwise coug Not have been
give pesple
N ruTal Comrmuntes accest o Righ-speea

broadba

oL, ard our Bbre network wili

Business conduct
As Directors our intenton

ensunng ranagement coe

integrty and v accorgar

eatrrent for non-Covid-19

of conduc d governance exprected of a npuLness
zuch as ours O intention throug oLy busness
11 to 14

sectors ano work with St er businesses that share

stratedy Outlined o0 page S Operate in

Business ethics and governance

The Board s respansible for ersunirg that the
of the
conducted in cormpliance witn the .aw and

aciiviiies Group ans its various busir esses are
apoicable governance and regulatory reqir
~ prevalling best practice f

riirausiry This

Yoinadherenze wil

Ncluces review.ng iInterra

eniunng t~at there ¢ an appropnae
A2 and esperence represens e(‘

r - that the financial stas

give a wue and far vicw of the stae of aft o tne
Furthier ¢

1oof drectors responsoilucs on

Grour etail car: be found in the statement
page Z29. Iri the vear
to 30 June 2022 no arcas of concern nave ogen

flagged i th s regard

Employee, human rights, social and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
and bribery matters

The Board's potcy oo employ
SIrALrITY S5A0S, enviran T ent policy

Churan ngnts,
social and
ana ant-corsupuar: ang brbery matte-s s discussed
i the Directors’ Report or page 29 The Soard

s a coroorate cuture trat 's cased

acuvely promae

o etrical values and behavicours
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Group finance review

Hoview of finencial statements

The puroose of this repart s 1o provide additional the share price and may not reflect changes in the

explanatory irforrmation on the ira-cial statements fuil market value of assets or businesses cwned by
I measurirg cur performance, the Tnarcat the Graup.

measures tat we yse noaude those that have been
A numoer of acquisitions were made curirg the

aerived from our reported resuts in order o ‘ » ) ) )
‘ year, Includimg nine operational reserve powsr sitas,
elirrinate factors that distort year-cn-year

awasie o energy site urder construction, a

comparisons. Thase are cons dered non-GAAP
congtruction ready w na farm in Astralia A

financial measures

severtesen solar rocfop sifes under constructio

Areconciliaticn of these (o the finarcial resuits can Shortly @ thie year eng, in July 2022, we <old

be found in note 28 of the notes ic e financa: Dariimgtfm Point, a large solar site in Australia,

statermenis. - ‘ . ‘
? To support continuac expansion, we had built up
" ne financiat statemants show assets at oost, gt such cash reserves ai year end of £256m which included

not reflect the futdre value that we expect o a large cash i flow of £ES7m frem piaoing exteraal

gerive from these busiresses, 7o that extent refinarang in Darlirgton Som: pricr to sale.

accountrg performance may differ rmaterially from

(restated) Movement
2022 2021
£ 000 £ 000 E'OOO %

Reveria: 711,830 425 302 ?86 5?8 67%

194,916 104, 036 Bf 860 877

DA
Frohn: .la‘fSJ bef‘rH rax - 7 7 47 604 o (22,663) o 70267 - ZOD -
Lendwr‘g b’JC< {net of Drwlcml o - 360 901 - 385,512 - {6.”;)
Cash 7 256415 wzare 8553 492
T e eans : g
NLt assels I 2,219,448 o 1 887 842 7 1%/n

Financial performance £425m; which was pregominantly d-ven by a 84% :

Cverall, the Group has reported a proft before tax of
£476m for the yvear ended 30 June 2022, which is a
£70.3m inrproverant o me ornor yeas (2021

£22 7m fass restated) Overal E8ITDA Increased by I plants for the full year and a large soar plant in
87% to £295m (2021 £104m restated), whicnis P Austraba

primarily due to increased energy generation as wel. 1 increase in average energy pnces over the year due

ncrease in revenueg within our erergy division This
growth is two fold, increased energy generation
from having cwned/operated one of cur hicrnass

reach:ng commissioning; anc a significant

as increa<ed energy prices. to the mismateh berwesan supply and demand,

‘ - 56 exacerbated by the ongoing conflict in Ukraine.
Revenue increased by Z287m w0 £712™m (2022 ; 9eing

l
o
@

ore nterest, tax, depreciation and amaortisation
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Group finance review

Revenue growtt: was strongest i our energy
division but we 3lsa saw a mar«ed improvement o
“his nart of
cur business has rebounded well from tha
tockdowns requireg oy the Cov.d 1% pandemic

g 41 units in the year @n ina

reasing In reven.e of £7.5m o
£12 /il

reveriue frorm Gur retiremrent viLaces

=g, sel

52/:!,) and aning

£2004m (2021

25

i

=nue from aur lernding dvision saw a drop of
to E42m (2021 £57r
7 book over the year

cash w

te grow cther parts of trhe Gugness

Operating expensas for he year were in ling wilh

tations, with the imcrease or mar y ar

W

our fibre dwision as
q exterrat dept o

e y:—:ars has
of £2 5m

contnbaie g ronterast costs

to E33.6m (7022

chessd oy 1

Sle g
vy Na farms in Finland

frichud & resulis this year 12 a oroht of
> on the

ton of 21 6™ of defered consideration

recognis - sale of two

and a re

an solar sies sold in previous ye

e

ars

Financial position
Contrnued sharenclder interest and invesunear: has

consdeaton of

COMParative year mumpers mclude £1,593m of
cons deratior reatng o group restruciunma.
f L808m (2021 £66

y £145m. efle

3m restated;
Ng tre reducion in

Net current assets o

have mc*ease:‘ 5

exterta. finranairg and ar increzse .~ WOrk N progress

s the thre brozdband s

tor over

spbst :aH/ Igite

Pothe oastiour years whch will recure further capital

expend:lure over Ine nexs

diversficalion across

3-5 years, irlreasing our
5 sectors

2nd, E212 i owas nela n
ngand f
per of cornstruction and

e subs dhares,

Q
j

Cte unGer way, requ nng cash o
dueir tne

for sTage paymer's
erd
(Z21 £R€7m restated),

contrives [o ne a sigrficant nurmger on the

Coodwill, ar

52T On h.:- a

calarnce theet g~ an uisition of some

i busnesses. Acqured Cusimeszes,
renewable erergy site

for example

market vaue

s, ¢iten have a s
N cxcess of tre corrpany’s ner assels

herr reliab e futare incor

COrvention regu
rzmoed on the Baar

Pocarnot recod the balance of the addr

value which comprises the future profts tha: sites
Ioare expected t 'J:—:I\ver_ I he addiional value in
Poexcess of the value oF fixed assets themselves (suck
i assolar o3

P Putaimioly t

genoraton

nusINesses)
profits

SLCN 35 50lar

. NGt the cost of smoiy buying

We pay
\J‘.’h Ch r‘ﬂ'aA /

[ panels or yaird fursines

marget vaue for ine sites we 3cauire,

UILre 1roome sIreams CCSA\NI recogrused wiil




I
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Group finance review

Sector performance

Energy

Ag economuc activity and globa‘ demrand Increases

fa

throughoul tne year, so oo did wholedale enargy

prices, daveri by moverments :n commodity proes,

which resuited r the overall increase it revenue

301055

earnec 30ross our energy sites These market

factars have resulted in an increase 0 revenue of

84% 1o £5595m (2021 £322m;.
Correspongingly, EBITDA also ncreased by 122% o
£266m (2021 £126m restated) refiecting the
significant increase n erergy revenue Cverzsli total
operating costs increased by £130m © £327m
FY2oz2
Production
(MWh
Biomass 1 050 038
Landfl Gas 240,226
Reserve Poaers 403,355
Solar 554,858
Wind 851,214
Total 3,099,650

P(2021 £196m restated), partally driven by increased
site costs where £120m was ncurred at our

D obiomass sites and £93m at our reserve powear sites,
tne prices for raw materials have increased, on
average, by £8% due to anincrease in the supply

costs The combired cost of sales for the resarve
power and Diomasis sies increased by £110m to
£21/m {2021 1077 It shouid be noted that the

revenue QfMCfatco h/ the picmass and reserve

topower sites increasad by £192m during the year o

POEEER (2021 £i6irm
FY2021 FY2nz2 FY2021
Production External External
} (MWh) Availability Availability
886 553 84.6% B3.2%
256,026 97.9% 767
141,086 94.2% 92.0%
517112 97.7% 96 0%
881,241 90.5% 9 1%

2 632 019

e

-
i
i e




Group finance review

Healthcare
Heszlthcare operations conribued £46m

(2021 £472m) 1o Group revenues ‘or the year

reflacting the wmpac
Saies of apartmerts at e atrement
the lockdowns
rdemic resnonse,

T of INcreased revenue

ye rebounded well from
tne Cﬂv‘ -19 p
its rincrease of 52% from
e E20 2m

T the year {a

easmg reverue oy SA0m

Lending
Revenue frorm lending decreased oy E14m to £42r
(2021 £57m) porimany due to a smalles averace
l2an book for 2022, whion resulted 1in a decreazad
Ca” hook
couced oy 6% to £361m at the year end (2021
£386m) Trs recuchon in the loan book enabes
cash o
sectors witnin the Group incladrg acqgusine nd
The makea-up of the loan book has

revenue strearn ‘or the year. The wotal i«

e availasle for opporiuriies across orner

CONStrucionn
chifiec st gr*ily where we have 1ssued a hrgoer
rumber of

cector as well

saler ans within the res dertal
35 more larger wans In tre

developme-t sector and e carnmerdia. sector

ESITDA for the lernding div.sion cecreased 1o a loss
cf £8 7 from a pofit of nearly £2m - the gnor
yvear Th.s movernert ref.lects a provisiorn of £257 n

the loan boc< agamnst loars o reserve Dower Lites

and a orovisior aga nst a hea'tncare ioan of £24m
I the year 1o June 2022, £39m was provided

aganst loans versus £21m in the prior year

ly new dirvizion, all the fibre businesses

are in the bund ohase ard are startirg to aad
cJdstornars o ther nemwarks 3y 30 Sune 2022, the

division ras bind passed over 150,000 hores. We

antcipate fhe cuild ztage to contnue

M

3-8 years as we expand tre “pre networes.
Altncugn bulding a fibre re

and eads to a

e Trkos Cap tal rlensae

crbmaaeanens

divisior alsa ricu

=

slarge o

erating expenses as the

Cus.nesses scale ther oneraticns and deve.op
rearket presence. Cverall the
£BITOA loss of 255 4m (2021

isin i ne with expectations and reflects the

> diviston reported an
£2Z25mios

o,
z
5
A
)

developrnartal stage of the division,

As we bullg these netwerks out, the

1 the bawarce sheet at cost whzh

assets wit be

Carno \'ncl 2 fuure vaue which is expected © b2
QEﬂerated as thfz assets have been internally

= differznt 10 the chare price where
expected o be generated from the

Home huilding

Elvia Homes was accuired in May 2022 md GG
therefcre had limited impact on tne fnancia.
performance durng the yea Tne usiness is
farecast to deliver 278 revande and 28 b
EBITDA ‘O-’ the year enced 30 June 2023 Resulis

frorn e f

et carer of 2023 indhcare tne business

15 orogaly serforming rine with exgpectarons

Funding and liquidity
Our strategy <

cure long-term financ ng at
consetvaive leves from maimstrea banks o
ertance retumne frore our renewable enargy

At year end we mad £1,044m of
external project “nancing w th £442mr, of

DUSINEZIes

eadroom avatabe

as pred
govarrmen: incentves or prover technology ang as
such hiave lower raturns gt w thout leverage would
ce nsufficient for our sharenolders It aiso allows ug
fiexioi ity I~ Airancng oL busine
cash flow We czigve rat fawawg 1C adoot tris

strategy would nave a negatye impact or bus ness

return and sharerc'der value over the

lorg termn
Acoroxrnaiely 80X of cur irterest payable s fixed

oyl e & N
ard therefore we are nct sign,

ficartly exposed to
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Group finance review

the currant intecesl rate volatiity We continuatly
reviewy financirg arrangements 1o ensure that they
opumised for the neegs of the
cazhis managed in an aglie

are cornpetitive ana
buiness To ensdrg

£

marner, we mantain a flexble finance facility
oe drawn down or Fﬁ‘r‘d\’j 0 meet

needs.

which can

immed.ate ousiness

Looking ahead

The Group has rebounded well from the effects of
the Covid-15 pardemic and has cdtperformec
expectations. Whilst the current eccromic outicok
is one of challenge

mirma: impact or o

and unceranty, we antic
urresults

Ipate
dua to the

predctable revenue streams and cost base, and
essental nature of our activities, Coupled witr the

=
’D

Up across ire bus
y fo these turbulent

e are positicnad st-ongl

tmes ahead
We contnue to pay particdlar attenuon o the twin

chailernges of
irfiat.on - ootn i terms of

rising irterest rates and surging
lending and portfolio
management These trends impact all areas of the
Group's business ang are lkely to remamn for the
future, so we remair disciplined 11 our
approach, continurg o moritor the
situation carefully and taking a prudent appraacn to
any current and ererging nsks

foresesable

irvestment

We are positive about the continued cppartunity
for growth and continue 1o oelieve that the
business 1s positioned well 1o take advantage of

future growtn opportunities across its core usiness

areas. Energy, lending and nouse building
operatiors are we.l estanlished in the market and
contirue 1o make excelient grogress with robust

performances in tre new fnarciai year » line with
our planned strategy, s.nce the year end we <old a
large solar farmn Austraiia for a smal orofi, with

proceeds being ch"‘" Oyed into new opportunities

Ceployment into fitre continues to rol outin ling
with expectations ana the Group has now passed
more than 150.000 homes by our fibre networks,
Sales aclivity in our healthcare division remamns
strong, witi nearly 40% of annual sales budget
already compietec or reserved across sll sites as at
tne ena of Seplermhber

Announced witnin the autumn statement as part of
tme 2023 Frnance Bill, the UK Governmment wilt

enarl g 454 windfall levy ("Hectricity Generator
G on wholesale energy marxet

s of E7S/MWhH. Thes is expected to

Levy” or
reveni:es in exce
anply to the Group frorm 1 January 2028w 2L
March 2078 The exact i2gisiat liched
in mid-Decerber 2022, but b sed or the mital
relesse an mpeact analys:s has beer
as & 30 September 2022 We ast

nowil e put

performed
rrate the mpac:
to be a droo in valuation of approximaisly E45m
for the sites affected, wn
2.0 decrease in the share pree 1o 77000

lick cantribuied to a

Decermber 2022,

Ne expect 1o generate strorg operaung returns
from oudr established divsions for the corning years,

in adcition fo the anticipatea cutflows for our
construction ghase assers Tre healthcare and

fibre divizions are weit irto thair build prase n line
with our lorg-term strategy arc we znucipate
strong returns over the next five to seven years
Upon matanty.

PS Latham
Director

16 Decemrber 2522

corih,
i
Niths
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

The directors present their report and the audited consclidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022.

For a summary of the Croup's resulls, refer o the
Group firarce review on page 23

The directors have not recommended paymeant of
a dividerd (2321 ZNil)

The airecters of the Compary who were n ctfice
durng the vear and Jp to the date ©f

firarc.al staterments were

PS Latham
K3 wWilley
PG Barlow

TArtrur lappoicted T July 2077}

e the financial

Sirateg ¢ Report on page 12

Refer to the section 172 statement on page 2t

ectives and polcies o
uding informaticn on
o to Ccredit rnisks, hauid:ty risks
utinnote 21 w0 the

3l risks are

-
in
set out in the straieqic report on page 16.

N - R

of the Companies
ted o dscloie
rforenglion regu red (¢ be n lhe dreciors repert
ot ine 'Large and Mediim-sized

As perrited by section £14¢ (11)

2008 the directors have els

by Schedule 7
Cormpanies and Groups {ACCounis ara '-?eporta}
Regulatons 2005 | in the strategic report

The Board «ecogn’ses t~at @ coroorate culture

pased on sourd etnical values and cehavicurs s ar
asset —h:—: SrCup engedveLrs o Sancuct 13
cusiness witn megrity, in ar ethical, profess enal

manner, realing our emoioyees,
customers, supoders and partners with courresy

Aoplicat.ons for ernploymenrt by d sebled persons
O

are given ful ana farr consideration

<
S
wolg rthe Group's employrent, every 25ort s
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

We fuly realise that our employees wish 1o be
inforrmed and consuited on matters afecting ther
work and (o ce snwvolved in prosiermi-solving affecting

their owr g2as of Interest ang responsibility.

The Group s firmiy cormmmitted b policy of good

<A
corrmurication az all levels and we am to establish

a climate which conatanily encourages tne onen
fiow of information and ideas Presantly this
inciudes montnly wam briefirgs at a local level anag
the pubication of monthiy ey performance
indicators coverrg output, operating costs and

Fealin and safety.

. . SN

The Grour Ras in place
Investments

ar agrﬁemem with Octapus

Limited to prc to tre

JIra
S10e

ervices
GrQUD cover;mg operationa’ oversight,
adminisirat'cn, company secretarial ard

arcounting.

COMpany

The Board adopied a formal environmenta., sacial
corporate aoverna FSG) pobcy on

30 Septernber 2020 The Group recognizes the
rneed to conduct 113 business, v a Mmanner that s

responsible (o the environmert, wherever pos

and rice 'k

sible

As a low energy user, the Company has glected not

to disclose data on its energy ard carbon usage.

Fem Trading Limred 15 the only Cormpany ir the
roun that meets the reporung criena and

therefore no information is providaa for the Group

as a whole

P P

The Group's has ar Anti-Bribery Policy which
introauced rocust procedures W0 ensure full
compliance with the Bnbery Act 201C and © ensure
that the Fighest stardards of prefessional ethical

condi.ct are main:ained

Ir accordance with the recormendaticnis of The U<
ode, the Board has

nts N place o encourage

Corporate Governanoe C
considered the arrangeamse
stafs of

the Croun or manage: of the Group o raise
concerns, in confidens

ossible mproprieties In matters of financial

e, within the'r organisation

about

cr cther matters Itis satisfied that adegquate

ents arg |

reporting
arranget n place to allow an incependen:
investigalion, and fol.ow-on action where necessary,

10 take place within the organizat.on

YWe aro committeg o acting ethicaly ard wh
integnty ir all cur Suasiness dealings anc

relationsh s and to mpiementing ard erforcing
effective systerns and conurols to ensure modarn
stavery 1S not takn“.g place N ouUr own
business or in any of our supply chains, co

the Macern

anywherg
1515tENT
witn our obligations under t Siavery Act
2015 We exgect the same high standards rom all
of our conractors, supoliers
rarmners As part of our coniracting processes,
comply with the Mooern

and ather business
We
expect aur suppliers to

Slavery Act 2015

St e ¢

The directors are responsible
Annual Report and the financ

for preparnig the
al staterments in
accordance with applicanle law and requlation

Company law requires the directors 10 orepare
fnancial statements for each financial year. Under
that law the directors have prepared the Growp and
Company financia, staternents i accordance with
United Kingdom Gererally Acceptac Accounting
Practce (Lnited Kingdom Accounting Standards,
compnsirg FRS 107 "The Firancial Reporting
Standara appicatie 17 the UK a~d Republic of
Ireland”, and d'JpUClee iaw) Under company law

t approve the financial

at they give a

oo o

the direciors must ng

statements unless they are satished tha




Directors’ report for the year

true and fair view of t-2 state of affairs of the Group

E}!

and Tompany and of the profit or ioss of the Group
and Company for that per o¢ in grepanng e

finarc.al staterrents, the directors are requirea to

» ctate whether applicatble Urited HKingdom

Accouning Stardards, cornprsing FRS 102, have
heen followed, subject to any matenal departures
lisclosed and explaned 1n the financia.

O

taterments;

e

s Take judgerments and accauntmg esnrrates hal

are reascrable and prudant, and

o prepare (ne fnancia sielements on the going

concers Bas’s unless i Is ImappropTiae o
presume that the Group and Compary whil

certinue in busnre
e gireciors are alzo respons be for sa‘eguarding
the assers of tne Group and Company and herce

for taking reasonable <teps for the orevention and

ction of fraud ard other irreguiasities

The directors are fe:ipom 5

accounting records tha
explan the Group and C Tipany's tranzactions anc
disclote with reascnante accuracy at an
finzrcal po

y urme the

sition of the Crous and Com™oany ahc

enaole therm o ensure that ‘h franc al statements

comply with the Comparies Act 9“"6

Tre arreciors are re
and -rtegrity of the Co
1 the Urited Kingeaor goverming the pregaatior

$ooNS Die for the Tamerance

mpary s webste, Leg slaticn

and dissemenaton of financ.al statremienis may differ

frorm &

ended 30 June 2022

POAs cerrmutted by e Art'cles of Associaton, the
I drectors nave the benefit of an Cndernnity which s
&G iNg th rd-party inde~nity prev.sior as

;o ocehred by secton 4“ of tne Comzarizs ACt 2006,
¢ The indernnny was in ‘orce throughout the las
Pofinanc.al year arc s cuneniy o

DI the case of each director in office at the date this
e drrector € aware, there is no releve

P gudit nformaton of whick the Group and

: Corgzany's auc tors Sweare, and

Poe teey mave tacen al

I to nave laken as & Girector In Oreer 1o make

: nermsalyes awaré of any ré.evant sudit

P infornaaon and o eztanus™ that tne Group ard

P Cornpany's auditors are aware of that nformaton,

IOEmst & Young |2 havng besr apooined r 2022,
Pohave indxcaLe therwilingress to be reappoirtes

for anorthes term and wil be proposed ‘or re-

appoiriment in acoordance with sacucn 485 of the

Comparies ACt 2006

i
=
2]
(J

Dweciors repart wat aoproved oy the Board of

or £ Cecemoer 2027 and sgred o its

PS Latham

]
i
|
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Lpinion

We nave audited the finarncial statemenrts of Fern
Iraching Lim teq {the 2arent Company’ and its
subsiclaries the 'Groug’) for tre year ended 30
Jure 20622 which comerse the Group Statemert of
Comrprenensyve ncome, the Group and Saret
Corrpany Balance Sheer, the Group Statement of
Cash Flows, e Grou p ard Parert S:atement of
Changes in Equity and the related notez 2to 29,
inciuding a sLrmary of significant accounting

polcies. Toe financial reporing framework that nas

been appled 'r their preparation 1s apet cable ‘.aw

and _mlted fingdor AccoLnt ng Stangards
incieding FRS 10z "Tre rinancial Reporting
Standars applic
ireland” tunteg Vmgqar” Generally Accepted

Account ng Pract

acle in e JK and Republc of

N our opiricn, the financiat statements

» give a true and fair view of the Group's and of the
Parent Company's affairs as at 30 June 2022 and
of the Group's pront for the year then endea,

* have beer properly prepared in accordance with
Uniteo ¥ingdom Generaly Accepted Accouning

» have heen prepared in gocordance witn the
he

Cormpanies Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our auditin accordance witn
internaticna. Stardards on Auditing (JK) 0545 (U
and applicabie taw Our responsioiiies under th
standards are further described in the Auciter’s
resgonsitilities for the audit of tre financal
staternents section of our report. We are
independent cf the Group :n accordance with the
ethical requiremeants that are relevant to our audit o
the frnancial statements ir the UK, mdudmg the
FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulilled o

other etnical responsibilines i accordance wita
tnese requirerments

A ‘T< "

We believe that the audit evidence we nave
cbtaned 15 sufficient and approprae W provice &
GasIs fOr Sur QoImcr.

Conclusions relating 1o going concern

in auditing the financal siatemenrts, we
concluded that the directeors wse of tne gong
Concern Dasis ©F accounting in tne greparation of

the inancial staternents s appropnate

Based on the work we have performed, we have
nct cenufieg any material uncerainiies ceiaung to
avents or corditons that, mdividually or collectively,
may cast signncant doubt on the Group and Paren:
Company's ab ity 1o cont nue as a going concenn
for a perod of twelve montns from when the
firancial statements are authornised for issue

Cur responsibilities and the responsibiites of

the qrreciors with respeci to going concern

foare described in the relevant secticors of this
Poreport However, because not all future everts or
! oconditions can be predicted, this sialement s niot &

o

i guarantee as to the Grouo's ability to continue as
Iogoing corcern

Ciher information

The other irformation comprses the nformation
incided in the annual report, other than the
francial staterments ang our auditors report
thereon. The directors are responsible for the other
inforrnation contained within the arnual report.

OQur opinicn on the financial statemrents does not

cover the ciher information end, excep: to the
extent otherwise exglicitly stated ir this report, we
do not express any form of assdarance conclusion

thereon.

Qur responsibility 1s 1o read the other nforrmation
and, n dong 3o, conaider whetner the cther
information ' materially inconsistert with the

financial statemerts or our knowledge oitained in




Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

510 be
Ifwe igentfy such matenal

the course of The audit or Zinerwise apoe

materially msstate
‘nconsistencies or apparent Taterial misstaternants,
WE are
to a matenial misstaterment in the finarcal
staterments the
rave perforrmed, we conclude that there s a

requ rec to determine whether this gives rise
qcewes. if, based on the work we

marterial missiaterment of tne other informaton, we

are required to report that fact

We nave nothng w repors ir thes regard.

Crpimions on other matiers presoribed

by the Companias Act 2008
inour opncr, hased on the work undertaken in
the course o° the auait.

s

o theinformacon giver in the Strategic report and
the Sirectors report for the firancia, year for

which the finanoial statements are prepared 1s

corsistent with the Anancial statements, and

« the Lirategic report and Directors regpert have

been prepared in accordance with applicab.e

legal requrements,

Matters on which we are rasquired io

report by excention
In the bgrt of the knowledge and understanang of

the Group and ~he Parent Comoany and 12
ervaronmenrt oblained 0 the course of the aLdin
we have not dentfied material missiateraants in

the Strateg < report or Direciors report

We nave not

I3

Firg o repsrtin reipect of e
N relation toowhen the

C paries Act 2006 requires Us o report 1 you 1

SrretLrns acsguste

rece ved from Lrancnes rol visied by L) or

e tme Harent Cormpary francial sialemr erts zre not
aqreerant with the accoonting records and

k..

m 3

r

-

al
7

“

e
o

o certar disglosures of Direclors remuneraticn

sfied by law are net made; or

Responsibiities of directors

Az expainec more fully in the Directors

Z% and
ble “cr the prepara

responsizlities statement set out On ages

30 the Birectors are respons

of the financial statements ard for bemyg satished

that they give a true and far view, and for such
ne

> Directors geterming s

nterral contra. ag @

necessery o erable the preparaton of inarci
statenents that are free from material

misstatement, wrether due to fraud or error

i oreparng the rarcal statements, the Diractors

A

re responsbie for assesang the Group's and the

Parent Corngany's abéhty tO coartinue as a goimg
concearm, disc.osng, as apcleable, matters reat
1O goING concerr and usng the goirg corcerr
basis of actcunu~g uniess tne Direciors echer

mtend to louidaie the Group o7 the Farert

Cornpany Or t0 Cease CUeralions, ©F Nave 1o

realst ¢ sltermaive but to do s

Aunditor's rasponsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements

Our objsctves are o obtar reasonabe assurance
apoul whether (he financia
are free from materizl missiaternent, whether due
w frand or eror, and o issuae ar audiior's report

that includes cur comon. Reasonable assurance s

a ~igh evel of agssurance, oulis not a guara~tee fnat

an andit conducien im accordance with (SAs (UK
woll abways detecr a matena. msstatemen: woer (it

StAteTEents Can arise fom fraug or eror
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

aplsnation as fo whatl extent the
audit was considered capable of

detecting irregularities, including
fraud

Irregularites including fraua, are instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulzlicns. We design
procedures in re with our responsibilities, outiined
apove, to detect rreguiarities, including fraud The
rizk of not ¢

fraud is
resuiung from error as fraud may involve delicerars

getecting a material misstaterment due to
higher than the risk of not detect:ng ane
concezlment by, for exarmpie, forgery or intentional
r through collusion The
extent to wh.on our crocedL

res are capable of

detecting rregu.anties, ncluang fravd s detailed
below However the primary responsibility for the
of fraud rests with ooth

v and

prevention and detecuon
trose charged with governance of the ent:
rnanagemeaent

Our zoproach was as fol.ows

- We obta ned an understanding of th
regulatory ‘rarmeworks that are applicable o the
Group and determined that the maost signifcant

are inose tnat relate to reporting framewoerk (FRS

102 and the Companiaes Act 2005)

o We understood how Fern Trading Limited s
complyng with those framewarks by making
enguines of managemen:, those charged with

governance and

and compliance
framewor< witnin the entity, incluging wheiher
a forma, fraud risk assessmient s compleed. We

those responsible for egal
procedures as to any fraud nsk

orroborated our enguinas through review of the
following decumentation or performarce of the
following procedures

» cbtairing ar understanding of entty-level
centrots and consigering the influence of the
contret environment,

« abtairning an unde s and
procedures in place r

ard regulauons, including how

standing of policie
eqgarding complance
with favwe
cormpliarce with sucn policies is monitored
and erforced, obta:ining an uncerstanding of
managaorent's process for ident fying and
resconding to fraud risks, includimg orograms
and controls established 1o address nsks
iderlilizd, or omrenwise prevent, ceter and
detect fraud, and how senior managemeant

miGnitors thase pragrams anc controls;

» review of poard meeling minutes n the per.o
and up to date of s:gnirg.

= We assessed the susceptibility of the Group's

francia staternents tc rmaternal misstatemen

including how fraud might occur by howding a

discussion within tne aud:t team which included

catior of reiated garties;

« understanding the Group's busress, the
ard asze

sx for relevant asserticns at the sig
account level including discuss.ons win

cortrol envircnment 59.NQ the In

nificant

marageme-t to gain an urderstanding of
those areas of the financial statemen:s which
wwere susceptible to fraud, as identified by
rranagemert and

+ consdered the contrals that the Gro
aestablisred to address risks iderntifad by

or that otherwise seek 10 prevent,

up has

the entity
deter or detect fraud including gainng an
understanding of the entity leve! controls and

pclicies that the Group aophes.

» Based on this understanding we designed our
audit procedures to identify non-compliance
with such laws and reguiations. Our procedures

involved testing of jourral entries through

sournal analytics wools, with focus on manual

tnerent
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

journats, large or unusual transactions, or journals

meeting our defined risk criteria based on our

understanding of the business; tested accounting

estimates for evidence of management bias;
enquiring of members of senior management
and those charged with governance regarding
their knowledge of any non-compliance

or patential non-compliance with laws and
regulations that could affect the financial
statements; and inspecting correspendence,
if any, with the relevant licensing or regulatory
authorities.

A further description of our responstbilities for the
audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor's report.

EENE S S S I P L

This report is made sclely to the Company’s
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006, Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state

to the company's members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company's members as a body, for cur
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

ﬁw\/@s&% f\c._L..lo

Michael Kidd (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP. Statutory
Auditor

Betfast

20 December 2022
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Group profit and loss secount Tor the vaar ended 30 June 2022

e R R SRR K by B2t R b R R b e R e e

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

/—‘ jfmrnc ral-ve expenses
Operatmg pfoﬁtl(loss)
Cither rcome

Ircomeo from orher fixed asset ryestments

Shiare of operating proftn jont venture

Prafit on cisposal of subsidiaries and joint ventura
Cther nieres: recewable and sirmaar incorme

Irerest pa,ai: e and f\rTwUr chur

Proﬂtl(loss} before taxation
xon pf:’wt/’lo 5)

Proﬁtl(loss) for the hnanc:al year

Attributable to Fern
Minority interest

(restated)
2022 2021
e €000 _.E0%0,
o
(410,883) (221,277}
300,947 204025
{258,251) (231 81‘”)
2 42,696 (27,819)
1 3,550 5454
5,249 249
- 1,755
29,533 28,568
&) 130 997
S {33,554) {36, 067)
T “47:“&6“4: o ””‘(22 6563
7 (16,294) (8349
37,932 (27.005)
{6,622} 14.007)
330 (31012

All rezults retate to continuing activities Note 26 details the prior penod adjustments

Group statement of comprehensive incomea for the vear snded 30 June 2022

aanun o R

Profit/(loss} for the financial year

Other comprehensive income

Movenents in cash flow hedges

Forean excnange \aam/l lo83) | or retrars !a[OI" of rubw*'dr es

Other comprehensive i income for the year

Total comprehensn{e mconjlrewfqr ?'}{!??f

Attributable to
s Owners of the parent
» Non-controlling interests

{restated}
2022 2021
£000 e 2000,
T me T T go
77985 44,983
18,561 333
96546 44550
_termse  1nemm
134,478 17645
{6,622) (4.007)
127856 13838
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Liroup balance sheet as 2t 30 June 2022

{restated]
2022 2021
[ ‘ota— £'000 £ OJO
I;;xeél‘;s;éts st s e e s et A e e < £+ 1 * Sy v YN e s
Intzngibie aszets 8 557,708 576,739
Tangioie sssels 9 1,893,430 1581682
\n\,eftmr rits 13 35,452 11.000 |
| S T 2486590 2169421
Corentasets . o e LTI . .
Srocks 12 184,479 94,711
Labtare (ncd Ny £238m (2021 €15 5m 13 623,161 598,002 !
due aftoert TLOre year) !
asm gl nark and i nad 11 256,415 £ 478 %
R ST IR . o . e .1 0ca, 055,,, 865 o 4
Cred'it"c';rs':'arﬁoqnts failing due within one year S 1w (256,152) 202059
Net current assets o - - - 807 903 S 66‘3 L;?
Tota”l;ssets less current lrahllmes S T M3 294,493 R 2 832, QSBW
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 5 (992, 425) . (%‘7 339}
Provisions for liabilities 7 s26200 (41372
Net assets o - : 7 -2 219 448 - 1,887,842
Capital and reser:;:s
Called up share capial e 161,662 145,676
Share premium account 364,882 175113
Merger raserve 1,635,569 1440257
Cash flow r 63,006 (14,979,
P of't ar d loss account (2 770) 146,049
,,,,, e e e e e 2222 o1 . 1,8é4,i21
B B (2.901) 3721
2,219,448 1887842

These conioldaied fnarcia; statermments o pages 25 to S22 were approved by the Board of direcors on
18 Decamber 2022 a~¢ are aignend on ther oehaltf oy

PS Latham
Drector
Reqistered Nnumber 1260163

b))

L
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GCompany balance sheet as at 30 June 2022

2022
Nore £'000

b s § owm o vifS 2 235 sk ke nh x b b he oot o e o bl b s S T B T ST 0 MR S WAL T T R E T T S IR 6§ T €0 O A e £ MO

Fixed assets
lrvestrrerits 10 2,539,978

Current assets

Debtors 13 35,888
Cask at bank and 11 hand 11 6,422
Creditors: amounts falling due withinoneyear 14 (449)
Netcurrentassets 45861

Total assets less current liabilities

Net assets

2,539.978WW -

2021
£000

RELIERRE wAtu BOMEEYSIuEaEeeay

2116366
2.116.366

50,383
1523
51 936

‘ (22 924) .

Capital and reserves

Catles up share canital 18 161,662
Share premiurm account 364,882
Merger eserve 1,986,457
Profil andloss accoun: A o o 72 838

Total shareholders’ funds ) 2,585,839

149,676
173,118
1791145
31409

U o145348

Tre Cormparny has elected 1o take the exerntion under section 408 of the Companies Act 200

65 not to

present tne Company praft and loss account. The vro"t for the financal period dealt witm in the financ.al

saterments of the Comparny was £236,742 000 (2022 loss of £157,504,000)

and are signed an therr behalf oy:

PS Latham
Director

Registered rumber 12601636

These fnancal statements on pages 35 1o 92 were approvec by the 2oard of directors on 16 Secerrber 2022
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Group statement of changes in eguity for the yeay ended 30 June 2028
Called up Share Merger  Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest (restated}
{restated) {restated) funds
(restated)
£'000 £000 E'000 £000 E'D00
138,435 (G3.837; (42,285 1668682 8570 1675552
- - - 3,875 13,828 17703 - 17,703
e 138435 - 1635569 (59962 (27356 1536685 957G 1696255
- - - - (27,005} (27005} (4,007} {3.012;
- - 445873 - 44,983 449835
- - - 1333 (333 - (233)
- - - 44,983 {335 44,650 - 44,650
- 44583 (27.338; 17645 €007 12,638
- - - - 1.831 1831 {1842 {11
- - (185312} - 185312 - - -
- - - 184,803 - 184803
- - (6,299, 6,843 - {68435
149,675 7318 1240,257 [24,575) 135,049 1,884,125 2721 1887842
Balance as at
1 July 2021 [restated) 149,676 173,118 1,440,257 (14,979} 136,049 1884,121 3,72¢ 1,887,842
Profit for the
financial year = - - - 37932 37,932 {6.622) 3L310
Changes in market
value of cash flow — - - 77985 - 77,985 - 72,985
hedges
Foreign exchange
loss on retranslation - - - - 18,561 18,561 - 18,561

of subsidiaries

:
1
|
|




B¢
i

Called up Share Merger Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest
funds
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 E000 E£'000
Other e
comprehensive _ » _
income/lexpense) for 77,985 18,561 96,546 96,546
the year
Totat comprehensive
income/{expense} for - - 77,985 56,493 134,478 (6,622) 127.856
the year
Utilisation of merger - 195,312 - (195,312) - - -
reserve
Sharesissued during 191,764 - - - 203750 - 203750
the year
Balance as at
36 June 2022 364,882 1,635,569 63,006 [2,770) 2,222,349 {2,901) 2,219,448
Note 26 details the pror pericd agjustmenris
Company statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2022
Called Share Merger Profit Total
up share pramium reserves and loss shareholders’
capital account account funds
£000 E'000 £°000 £°000 E£'000
Balance at incorporation - - - - -
Loss for the financial vear - - - (157,504) {157,504}
Utilisation of merger reserve - - {195,312} 155,312 -
Total comprehensive income - - {195.312; 37808 157.504
Shares issued during the year 190,120 173,118 1986457 - 2,309,695
Shares cancelled during the year 444] - 6,399) 6.343)
Balance as at 30 June 2021 149,676 173,118 1,791,145 31,409 2,145,348
Profit for the financial year - - - 236,741 236,741
Utilisation of merger reserve - - 195,312 {195,312) -
Total comprehensive income - - 195,312 41,429 236,741
Shares issued during the year 11,986 191,764 - - 203,750
Shares cancelled during the year - - - -
Balance as at 30 June 2022 151,662 364,882 1,986,457 72,838 2,585,839
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Group statement of cash flows for the vear erdled 30 June 2032

lrestatec)
Note 2022 2021
) . ‘ o £ 000 £000
cash flo‘ws‘f‘r;m ope:*auﬁ;;‘ctwmesmww vt L smene 1L ¢ ereorbas s © S SRR g 0 R b e NI 2 £ R s SR s S8R AR 0
Proft/iiss) for the fnancia, year atvibutable to tne owrers of the parart 37,932 127,00%)
Adjustments for:
Tax on oroht/iioss) ;7 16,294 £.349
Interest recrvabie and simaar ircome 3 (130) (997)
Interest payanle snd orher similar charges & 33,554 36,068
Prof 1 on disposal of subsidianes and jont venture 3 (29,532) [28,568)
nCoMma o ot venture - [1,755)
Income rom fxed ass07 investmants {5,249) (449)
Amartsation ard irepasmcrt Gf intangble fxed asses < 45,762 27704
5 101,802 24697
3,040 8,875
{18,044) {15,788}
(19,829) (5,701
31,022 245,374
(173,956) 6,871
NMeor-controling interests 1% {6,622} 14,007}
25 853 {1751
a1897 4017
Cash flows from mvestmg actlvmes 77777 -
Purchase of sLis dary ungariakngs net of cast acguired) (52,377) (221,987}
Sale of subsidiary undertalargs and |0t ventirs 101,778 34503
Purchase of tangitue asscts (322,446) (110457
Purchiase of Intangib.e assers (7,.222) (875)
Purchase of unlzied investreents (124,203) (29.617)
Szie of unlisied rvestrionts 140 105,000 20,133
rerest receved 130 G557
mcdfrb freyemy joint venture ) - 1077_
Net cash used Iarirﬁrvestmg actwﬁ'l”és o 7 ) M (599,3;10) (SOF 2?6)‘
Ca”swl;rflows from financing act|v|t1es - o 7 S i
Proceeds ‘rorm fnar 201,719 -
rterest pad {32,319) (35552)
Repayments of {32,013) (212,675}
& 203,750 184,355
F7es 15 - (6.399)
Net cash generated frt;;”fmahcmg actwmes o 7 o ) 341 137 (7O 268)
Net (decrease}lmcrease in c;;h and cash equwalents - . T 83 694 o (34,57?1. -
Cash ard cas™ cgun ,glor 1 8t the pegrning of the ve 172 478 . 206,688
Exchange g;,rl.f. o cas™ 2n cash Pqu vaerts ) 2_43”7 _ B . 367
Cash and ca;;_équival;_r;fs at the end o! the year 256,415 ) 172,478 A

hote 26 aetans the onor penod ac ustments
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Statement of accounting policies

Company information

Fern Trading Limited (the Cormoary’) 1s a prvate company bmited by shares ard incorporated on 14 May
2020 The company is dormiciled in England, the United Kingdom and registered urder company nurnber
1260163€ The address of the registered office is at 6th Flocr, 33 Holborn, London, England, ZCIN 25

Statement of compliance

“hre Groap and iravidual inarcial statements of Fern “racing Lirmited have beer prepared in compliance
with Unced Aingdarn Accounting Stancards, inclading Financal Reporting \n::radafd 62,7
Reporting Standard applicable .n the Urited Xingdom and the Republic of freland (RS 1027 and th

Carrpanies Act 2006

e Firancia:

Basis of preparation of Bnancial statements

The finarcial siaterments have been prepared On & goiNg congcern basie, under the nicioncal cost conventon,
az rrodifies by the recogriton of certan inancial assefs and tabilit es rmeasured at far va\ue, andin
accordarce with the Compames ACt 2006 and agpitable accounung standards in the Unted Kingcom The
crincioa accounting polces, whicn have been applicd consistertly throughcut the vear, are set ot below

The consoldatea fmanacia. statements include the resalts of ail supsidianies owned by rern Trachng Limited
as listed nonote 29 of tre annuai financia: statements. Certain companias of these subsidiar.es, whick gra
Isted i note 29, kave taken the exemnplion from an awdit for the year ended 30 June 2022 permitted by
secton 479A of Companies Act 2006, In order 1o allow these subs:idhanes to take the audt exemption, the
parent company Ras given a statutory guarantes, in ine with section 4797 of Comparies A 2006, of alt
the outstanding ret LabkUtes as at 30 June 2022

Going concermn

5

nha Group's and the Company's ousiness activities, togetner vt the factors likey o affectits future

developrnens, performance and position are set cut the Strategic Report on nages 4 w© 14, The finanaiat

costion of the Group 15 cask flows, liguidity position and borrowing facilities are described in the finandciat

.,

tie
review on pages 23 1w 27 The princips! risks of the Group are set out on pages 16 © 19,

The Direciors perform an annual going concern review that considers tne Group's ability to mest its
financiat cbligatons as they fall due, for a period of at least twelve months after the date that the financial
statements have been sighed.

Due to the cnallenging market conditiors managerment have performed ar assessment o ceterming
whether thera are any material uncertainties arising that could cast signficant doubt on the ability o the
Group 10 continue as a going concern. No significant issues have been notad and as a conseguerce, the
nirectors believe trar the Group s well placec to manage its pusiness nisks successiully despite the currant

LNCENE T eConomic Ouindk,
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Statement of accountmg policies

In reacnimg this conclusion the Directors have reviewed the fnenc al impact of the uncertanty on the
Groug's nalance sheest, oro ': and loss and casn flows with speciic cons'deratinn givern 1o tne foilowing

Areverse stress st was performed on the tase case forecast to ascertain what sceranos would result in
rizks o the Grou:‘;s

dguidity positicn. The test showed even in an urbkely scenaro of 3 sgnficant reducton

of revenues of 46%, the Grouo 1s able 1o sustair its current operational costs and mest all Udull\‘ 25 as they fall
due for at least g year from the date of signiry these financas stalements wher utis.ng e avalaole

fac lties with.n the Group

The Group has g number of Airancing facilit es that contamn covenznis requinng the Group to marntain
spec-fied Nnancial ratios and comply with certain other Fnancial covenants These financial coverants are
tested at least guarterly, and, at tre date of tm.s repory the Group s in complance wits all its finarcial

covenanis Sire

55 @SS on reasonanly plaus.bie scenar'os sLeh as a signncant reducton in EBITRA of 84%
over time have been used o aswess the covenant recu rerrants for the at least the next twe ve months ana

all covenants Nave Deen ’ore:;as o be meat even under the s st scenario, N theé gong concern ooricd

256m and heacroorr avadace of £44m nclading &

. ) Flsrly. -
A 20 Jurnie 2022, e G
P
£

revalving cread facitivy due 1o maiure mess (Nar ane year, with the rermamner
of £956m payabe i more tnan one year. The Groups facities, regayment dates and undrawr amounts ase

sat out m MNote 16 Loans and Borrow ngs

Key accourtng ucgerment and estimates have beer mada with consideration gven to tne current

economc autlook Hey estmates include 'can reccveral Uty, VALLAUCH of wark i prograss,
decommussicring provisions, imoairment of goodwil anc nvestrment:, busness combnatons and hedge
accouning. oetalls are set out on pages 50 to

1

Based on the above assassmeant of current ecorormic cond tiors and the impact o1 the Groug's financial
position, hqudty ana anancia. coverarts, the direciars have concluded that the Grour and Comipary has

Geduate TesoUrcat to contfue n opaamOﬂw exisience for the next 12 maonths Thus, they contnue o

adopt the going concern basis of accounting in orapanng tne annuat inarcial slarereants
Exemptions for g as&%%éﬂ; ing entities undey FRELG2

FR5 102 allows a cualiying entity certain disciosure exermpt ors. sublect to certer conditors, whah have
veen compbed with, Includ rg neufication of and no orject or to, the use of exermptiors by the Compary's
sharenolders.,

The Cormpany ras taken

1 from prepaning a starement of casn !

=
o
7}
ey
<
o
—

ying entty and the corsoudarsd

nent of Cash fows, raluded n these Gnancial steterments, ncludeg tre Corrpary's cask fows,

sures, reguires Lrder FRS 202 parasrachs 12 35 w0 12 £84 and
rs

the \f‘f:“’f*«ﬂ@ﬁ S provded v the corsohcated frarcisl siaermant

from disciosing Toe Comicany key rmanagement perscrna: Comrpensation, a5 regures by FRS 102




Statement of accounting policies

Basis of consolidation
The conscldates financal statements irciude the resalts of Fern Trading Limited and sl its subsidiary
urdertakings made U0 o the same accourting date Al intfa—group balam‘cs, transact:ons, INCome and

experses are eliminaed in full on conscldanon. The results of subsidiary urdertakings scaured or disposed

of durng the ceriod are rcluded or excluded from tne inv:orne statement from the effective date of
acgJisition or disposal

All urdeartakings over which the Group exercises control, being the power to govern the financial ang
aperating poices so as to oitan henehrs from their activities, a0 consolidated a3 subsidiary undertakings
Whare 3 suosidiary has aifferent account ng policies to the Group adjusiments are maae (o (nose
subsiglary fnancial staternents to acply the Group's accounting poloes when preparng the consolicated
firancizl staterments.

Any subsidiary undertakings or assoates sold or acquired during the year are included up W, or from, the
tates of change of cortrol or charge of aignificant influe-co respechively,

Wrers the Group has written a put oplion over srares held by a non-controlling interast, the Grouo
derecegnises the nor-contraling interest and instead recognised contingent asferred cons deration liability
within gtrer payables for the estimated amount [kely tc be paid fo the non-controling interest on exercise
of trose options The resdaal amourt, reprasernting tre differerce between any consideraion pa-d/payanle
ard tne non-controllng irterest’s share of net assets, is recogrised as goodwill Moverenis in the

co

estmated bkabilty after intiat recognition are recogrisaed as goodwill.

Forsion currsncy

i. Functicnal and presentation currency
The Group financial statements are presented in pound sterling ard rounded to thousands,

The Company’s functicnal and presentaticn currency s pound siertng and roundes © thausards.

il. Transactions and balances

Foreigr: currency transactions are translated nito the functioral currency using the spot excnange raes at
the dates of the transactions. AT each period end foreign currency maonetary ifems are transtated using the
dcsing rate Nor-menetary iterns measured at historical cost are translated using the exchanges rate at the

zte of tne transaction and non-monetary iterms measurad ar fair value are measured using the exchangs

+

(N

rate when farr value was determned, Foreign excrange gains and losses resuiting from the setdement of

transactions ard from the translation at cenod-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liapibt!
denominated in foregr currencies are recogrised :n the oroft and loss account.

Al forelgn exchanage gams and losses are presented i the profit and wss account within ‘administrative
expenses’

iii. Translation

Tne wrading resuite of Group undertakings are translated infe pounds sterling at the average e4cnange rates
for the year The assets and Lacillies of overseas urdertakings, including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acqusitior, are translated at the exchange rates ruarg at the year-end Exchange adjustments
arising from the retrarsiation of opering net investments and from the fransiation of the profits or losses

at average rates are recogrised in 'Other cornprehersive ncome’ and allocated to nor-controling interest

az aporopriate

Tiivitoyah
Frbes e

P
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Statement of accounting policies
Turnover
The Group operatez a nurmber o classes OF business Revenue is derved by tha following’

- Erergy
Turnover from the sale of electricty gererated Dy solar farms, wing generating assets, reserve sower
olants and brorrass and lancll eres is recagn.sed on an accruals bas s nthe penod nowhich it 3

generated. Revenue from [ong-tarm government backed afftake agreeTents, sLCn as the Renewable
Obligation Certfcat on (ROCT scheme ae acorued 0 the perod inwochk itrelates to Tumover from the
sale of fertiiser by biomass and tandfll businesses is recogrused on physical dispatch

+ Healthcare
Turnover s recognised wher the significant risks and rewards of ownersmin of retremert propetias have

-
nasced 1o tne buyer [on legal completion;, the amaournt of revenue can te recognized relably, ana it is

3
o ow il to e enity Turmover

course of busicess, and (s shown net VAT Tuarmover s

recogrised pased on the date the service s

proviced

= Lending

Turnover repres s arrangemert fees and irterest on loans provided 1o customers, net of any value

a
added tax Loar interest s recogrized on an accrual tasis in e witn conractual terms of 1he loan

agreernent. Arangoment fees are spread over the lile of the loan o whar they re

. Fibre

er of VAT, Turnover 15 recogn-ced

iT services provided In the norma course ©° business, and 13 shawn ¢
e se

sased on e date th

« House buildirg
Turnover s recogrised on legal comcletion of the sale of property. lana and cormmercial spates. Turmover

s referance o the vasie of work completed as a

=

from housng a3soaation Contracis s recocn.sed b

oroporton of the wolal conract valae,

Employes benefits

Tne Groug provides a range of penehis o employees, including annual sonLs arrangements, paig holicay

grrangements ang defined contrbunicn pens on plans

i. Short-term benefits

Snort- teom penetn roiuding no. day

Expenie 1 the peroc in whicr tre ser

ii. Defined contribution pension plan

A defined coninputon olarn s @ cengion olan Wnder weach we Gro Lt pays Gxed contnouticns mic a
=]

separate entity Once the contruticrs nave peen pad e Group ra

2l
3
o
=
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=
i
3
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s
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=
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ecogr sed &s an expense whan ey
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Statement of accounting policies

iii. Share-based payments
Cash-settled share-based payments are measured & far value at the balance sheef date. Tre Group
recogrises a Lability at the balance sheet gate bazed on these fair values, gking nts accolnt the estimateg

number of units that will actuatly vast ard the curent proportior ©F the vesing penod.
Charges in the vaie of this lan-lty are recagrised n tre income statement
The Group has no equity-settled arrangements

Finamce cosls

Fnance costs are charged o the prmt and loss accoLnt over the term of the debt usng the effective

interest methcd so that tre amount ged  at 3 constant rate on the carying amrounl, -ssue costs are
initialy recognised as a -eduction in the p" eeds of the associated canital Imstrument and releated o the

proft and loss account over the term of the deit

Current and deferved 1ay

Tax ic recogniced in the statemert of income and retaineg earn.ngs, except that a cnange atinbutate 1o 2n
come ard expens ised as other comprenensive incorne or (o an tem recogrsed directly

ity is also recogrises .n o }’Dr com;:re?‘-ensive income or directly in equity respactively.

The current inceme (3% cha g is caiculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have Leen enacted or
cubsiantvely cnacted by the batance shest date In the countnies where the Company cneraes and

generates Income.

Deferred balances are recogrised in respect of 2l tming differences tnat have origmated but not reversed
by the Balance sneet date, except that

+ The recognior of deferred tax assets is imited (o the extent that Tis probable that they will be recoverea
aganst the reversal of deferred ax liabilties or otner future taxaole profe, a~d

» Any deferred tax balances are reversed if and when all conditiors for retaining associated tax allowances
have seen met,

Deferred 1ax baiances are not recognised m respect of permanent differences except in respect of business
combrations, wren ceferred tax is recognised on the differerces between the fair values of assets acgusrad
and tne future tax deductons ava lab.e for tnem and the differences between the far vaues of lab hties
acquired ard tha amount that wil oe assessed for tax Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws
nat have peen eracted or substantively enacted oy the balance sheet date.

Business combinations and goodwill
Busiress combinations are acccunted for by applyng the purchase method.
The cost of a business combinauon s the fair value of the consideraticn giver, lighilities incurred ar

lrr
assumed and tne egity instrurments issued plus the costs directly attributable 1o the busiress combination.
Where control 5 achieved in stages the ost is the cons.deration at the date of each transaction

On acguistion o a business, fair values are astributed o the identifiable assets, liabilities ang contingent

liabilities urless the fair value cannot be measured reliably, 'nwhich case the value is incorporated as
goodwill. Where the fair value of contingent liaoilites cannot oe reliably measured they are disclosed

on the same basis as cther contingent liabihtic
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On acgusiion, geodw llis alocard 1© casn-geraraurg units {CGL'S) tnal are expected (¢ Derefit from
the comibnation.
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Life wiec s determuned tased on the estirrated lifescar of

crhsed over its expecied us

acgures Where the Groun s unab.e to rraxe a relable estirasz o ful Yfg, g@od\m
amortised over a pencd rot exceeding ton years Goodwill s reviewed and assessed for imoairmrent

indicators on an annual pasts ang any wnoarrent s charged to the profitand o

Core

SRR OH

Jzotul ves are a<

Ju]'l’ r ne

5T a\ght hh\

Thawe assets are not daprec ates unt i they are

Where factors, sacr as rechnowgical advancemert or chasges in markel once, ird'cale trat resdua! value
d > gre amended praspectivey W
bove factors indicete tnat ine

Gane and losset on disoosals are ceterrminea by corpanng tne oroceeds with the carrying amaourt and are

couminlated arornsation and accumulated mmpairment los

cate the depreciable arrount O tre assels

Deve ogrrent rig consent o Lald a selar farm ang 3 w.and farm acgu red on acou siior
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Statement of accounting policies

Where factars, such as changes in market prce, incicate that residual value or Lseful life have changed, the
resigual value, usefu: lfe or amorusat.on rate are amended prospectively to reflect the new crcumstances

The asiets are reviewed for imgairment if tne above factors indicate that the carmyrg amaount may
2

Leaszes

At incertion the Groug assesses agresrrerts that transfer the right to use assets, The assessment considers

as
whether the arrangement s, or Ccontairs, a lease based on the substance of the arrange L and whether

the lzase shiould be classified as either a finance iease Of an operathing £ase

the risxs and rewards incidental to ownersrip are Cla e
ed at the commencemeant of the iease at the fair valuc of the
of il

the lease term and the estimatec useful life of ¢
resed tor immparmant am reporing caie

not transfer als the rizks and rewards of o\-vnersmp re classified as operaling lcases,

4]

-
-
Payments urder oper at.ﬂg leases are chargec to the profit and loss account o & straight bre bas’s cver th

Invastments

Tne Company holas investments in a sutadiary 3t cost less accurmnutated impairment fosses, I an
imparment loss 15 subsequently reversed, the carrying amacunt of the nvestment s increased 1o the revised
estimrate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the revized carrying armaount does not exceed
tre carryirg amount that woud have been determinea nad 7o mpa\rmeﬂt loss been recogr.sed in prior
periods A reversal of ar impairment loss is recogrises in the profit and 1oss account

Cash

Cash ncludes cash i hand and deposits repayable on cemand. Restnicted cash represents cash for which
the Group does rot have immedaate and direct access or for which reguiatory o legal recuirements resrict
the use of the casn

Socks

Raw materals, soare parts and consumables are valuad at the lower of cost and net realisable value Where
acessary, 2 provision is made for obsoiete, slow-moving and defecrive stock Caostis geterminad on the

ﬁrstf\n, first-cut (FIFC) methog

Fue. siocks (MBM and litrer] are valued on an average Cost Dasis over one 1o two months and provision for
urusable htter 1s reviewed monthly and applied tc off-site siock.

Fue. stock of strave has been valued at the historica: cost per 1onre of straw. A provisian ‘or unusable straw
Is ?deﬂuﬁeu on an indivdual stack pasis and is reviewed monthiy, Stocks are used on a first in, first out
("FIFO basis

by age of straw

Stocks of ash at Fibropnos are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value to the Group

Stocks of property development work in progress ("WIP'T are statec at the lower of cost and net realissble
vatue Cost comprises airact matenals and, where applcable, direct labour cosis and those overheads that
have been incurred 'n bringing the siocks to their oresent locatcns and conditon.
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Statement of accounting policies

AL eacn reporing date, an asessmart s mace for wmpairment,

Y amoun: af

stocks over 15 estmated selling price .ess costs 10 cormplee and sell s recogrised as an impairmeant loss
throughn the grolit and lose accoont Reversals of »mparment losses are alsc -ecognised i the proft and

KOES accaounT

Aoorued income

)

contratts Erergy ncome s f

= H

sars is calculated at the rate of interest s&t Ot I

rwhich  haz been geme“ated‘

Peferred income

De‘errad 'ncorre § recogrised n accordance with the termis set out in the contact. Deferred rcome s
t

releasec ¢ the orofit and loss account in the cenod (o which it relates |

Financial instruments

Tha Grouo has croser 1o 2dont Sechions 11 and 12 of FRS 102 1 resoect of finarcial instrumcnts

Basic financ al 2s neiucing trade and othar receivables an

recogn’sed af transact.on price, wnles: the arangement corsiiut glellal¢Rs ion, where e
fransechion 'S mea

regoured al the present vatue of the future receipt el : nar ate Of interest 3
i
ety carned at amorssed cott using :

reoortmg per.od Arancial assels measurad
M an assetis imgeaired the irr‘pairrwem* loss 2

Held c—b)sective
carryirg

present value of the estimated cash fiows discounted at tie a33et's or-gnat efecive interast

S recogrisec n orof T or loss

Cither financal assets, includirg nvestmerts In ecuity nstrarnents whics a-e not subsidiares, associates or

joint vanitures, are it ally rneasured &% fair value, whichs rorrally the trarsaction prnice. Such assets ae

S.‘_jbiequerﬁj caried at fair value and the changes in fair value are recognised in oroft o css, excert that )
H
mvestmers i equity instrurents that are not publcy fraded and whaose far vaues carnol be messured !
retiably are measured at cost iess impairment !
]
i

Finarcral asses are derecognizen wnen (@) the comtractual nghts te the cash f.ows rom the asset excire ‘

wransferrec to

g
are setted, or (b subsianially al the risks ard rewsrds of the cwnership of the a
£

anciner party or ic) o n rransferred ¢ ancthe” narty wno has the practca. shity ;

o uriaterally el =2 chors

drsccurfe:' ar a market rate of reres
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Statement of accounting policies

Debt insiruments gre subseguaertly carmed at amortised Cost, using the effective interest rate metned Fees
paid on the estaiblishment ©f loan faciites are recognised as fransaction costz of e loan 1o the extent that
1t is prehakie thar some o all of the facilty wiid De drawn dowrn. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-dowr occcurs, To the extent there s ro evidence that 111s probable that some or 3l of the facilily will
be drawn down, the fee s capifal'sed as a pre-payment for Lguidity services and amortised over the pericd
of the faclity to which it relates.

Trade payables are cbligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course

of bus.ness from suppliers. Accounts payable are classibed as current haoiines of pa‘_-.fmemt is dus with.n nne

i

yeas or less If not, they are presented az nor-current labilities. Trade payables are recogrised initialy at
ef

factive nterest method

:
Q
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equenty measured at amortised cost usrg the

Fnancia, iabilities are derecognised when the Vatilty = extinguished, that 1s when the contractual oblgatior

Provisiens

Provisions ase 1aae wheare an event has taken place hat gives tne Group a legat or constructive ooligation
at protacly requives settierant by a trans’er of economic benefit, and a reiiadle estimate can be mace of

tne amount of the obligaticn.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the profit and loss account in the year that the Grouo becomes

aware of the obligation, ard are measured at the best estimate at tne balance sneet date of the expenditure

reguired to settle the obligaton, aking irio account re.evant rssks and Jnceraintes,

Hedging
e Grodp applies bedge accounung for transactions entered inTo to manage the cash flow exposures of

borrowrgs Interest rate swaps are held to manage the interest rale exposuras and are designated as cash
flow hedges of floating rate borrmwings Changes in the fair values of derivatives designated as cash flow
ed

hedges. and which are effective. are recognised directly in egulty, Any ineffectiveness in the hedging
relaticnchip theing the excess of the curmulative changes n far vatue of the hedgirg nstrument since
inc ephcn of the hedge over the cumuiative change in the fair vaiue of the hedged itern since Incegtion of

hedgel is recognised in thie profit ara loss

The gain or loss recognised in other comorehansive ircome is reclassified to the profit and 1033 in
accordance with the cash flows of the hedged item. Hedge accounting = giscomtinued when the heaging
instrument expires, nc ionger meets tne hedaing crtena, the forecast ransaction @ no longer highty
probabie, the hedged dent insirurmrent is derecoan sed or the hedging instrament 1s terminated.

Share capital

Crdinary shares issuad by the Group ars recogrisaed In eguity gt the value of the oroceeds receved, with the
excess over nominal value ceing credited o share prermium,

Hon-controlling interests

Non-controlling :nterests are measured st ther proporticnate share of the scquiree’s identifiable net assets
at the cate of acguisiticn.

i inh e
ni &vf&:‘ b5t
ety
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Statement of accounting policies

Hev acoounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of inancial statements in com nee with FRS 102 requiras the use of certain cnt cal

accounting estimates It also requires mznagement (o exargise judgement . app g the Company's

accountny policies. Estimates and judgerments are contpually evaluat ~d are pased on nistoncat
experience a~d other factors, including expectauons of fur.re events th tare uel\wed o be reazcnable

under the circoemistances The kay estniates and jud

i. Recoverabitity of loans and advances to customers (estimate)

Loans and advances to cusiomers, ircluding associated accrued incomre pelances, are reviewed for
‘mpairmenrt on a —quartefly basiz In consider ng the reec for @ providion, managerrent determne ther best

ectimate of the expectens future cash flows an a case oy case bass Ag this estimate refies o0 a cerain
~umber of assurictions about fulure events wh:Ch may d:fer from actuat cutcomes, including the
sorrower's aoil! ty Lo orepay interest and cacital due in .uture oenods, this g'ves 1ise o judgement as to
wiiether there 15 a snortfall petwee~ the carrying va.ue ang the fair value of the debtor balance.

ana awvarces is a ot estimate and nave therefore

The res aits of the sensitivity analysic conclude that 2 charge

+/~ ore per cent th armoont provide aga nst tre gstrmated talarce st ris< would have resulted i
2%

.‘-endirure peing charged to the income statement duing the pericd See note 13 far the

arryirg amount of the delbtors ana provisions at 30 June 2027

ii. Value of property development work in progress {WIP') {estimate)
Property deve‘.c-pment WP 5 reviewed “or imparrert o a penodic bass. In considenng fne need for a

Crovis.on, managemeant getarnm ~e tnair best estmate of the recoverabls value, Mana

nen. erdd

3% ump ioris about future events wh.ch may ciffer from actual

expaert external v:.tuu o provide xey a
outcomes. includirg property valuations, rate of sales and gevelopnent costs

tojudgerent a3 lo whether toere s a shorifail batweer the carrying valug a~d the
far value ¢f the balarce as at the 30 Juna 2022 Post year end, mranagement have reviewed the
§ usad o detarming the value of property development WHEF and have obzarved no charges ir

ONS
ance tat wolld rpact the valuation a5 at the 30 June 2022 See note 12 for tre carry
ca‘ the progerty developrrent WP

iii. Purchase price agreement (Australian entities} (judgement)
The Group owns twos energy gerneraling sutsidiane

agreements (FEAS

ir Austrzia which nave entered 1mic ourcnase prce

~

in 2015 and 2020 The PPAs ncluge a contract for ¢ fereqces "CFD whershy the

ewe armounts from “he custcreer based on the differarces between a xad seil

e for ¢lectraly sold 10 the Austratian e-ergy mar<et The directars beleve the o«

scope of FRS 102 sect

chizasitsforthesaleof a ﬁCﬂ*f‘hr}’wC‘a\ tem argthe Tfas

Trerafnre

ceounted for urger —R5 L n 23 as arever o coriratt with

erahior, rather t=an revaluing the entire contract o fa'r vaue.

iv. Business combinations (estimate)

ot of 3 buzine<s comoimaton

s e g

cosis direCliy atinbutable o the busine

a~d rnore detalls are providec ¢ pages 45 16 46,
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Statement of accounting policies

v. Decommissioning provision (estimate)

The provision for gecommissioning cosls ' measdred at management’s best estrnate of the oresent vaiue
of the expenditure requirad to settie the future obligaton o return land on which there are cperational wing
of the provisions is deermirned to 3 significant dag ca by

and sowar farms, toits original condition The leve
the estimation of future cismanting and restoration costs, as weli as the tUming of dismantlement,

Wind Farms (estimate):

Maraager*ﬂcnf nche that decornmissioning provizions «$ a cntcal estimate and have therefore performed
sensitivity analysis. The resu ts of the sencitivity analysis conciude that a change of +/- ane percert in the
discourt rate would have resulted in £2.1m increzse/decrease in tne provision. >e2 note 17 for the provision
recogrised at 30 Jure 2022 Managemenrt utilise external expertise (o provide an esumated cost o
dizrmantle and nave used a discount rate of 2% tc reflect the tme in vaue of maoney a~d the rsks speciiic

to e obagatior.

Australian solar farms (judgement):

Tha Group it required 1o restore the leased premises of the solar fam to t c.'iq'“-al conditen &l the end
of the lease term A provision was orevioJdsly recognised. however in tne current year this jucgement has
been reassessed and management believe the lessor may wish to either take title of the assets for exher
continued use or to realise value througn seliing the asseis ard as sucn do not beleve that an outfiow is

whaple 1o settle trig restoraticr ohlganon.

UK Solar {estimate):

Dur ng the vear, a trrd party performed an assessment of the base cost of the decomrussionng of the
Grouns JK solar farms The finaings have resulted in matenat change in the cost estimae and therefore a
provision has been recogrised for the first time on some sites Tne impact hat resulted na provision ceng
raised for £18m to the balance sheet decom misswoﬁmg Jability ard fixed assets, As at 30 Jung 2022 there is

nc irnpact on the profc and loss. Sites not affected are addressed pelow

UK and French Solar {judgment):

Management believe that given the nature of thes,:e particular assets, tne lesscr may wish to ether taka tile
of tne assets for either continued use or o reslise value through seiling the assets and as such do not
believe that an outf.ow s protable to settle thic restoraton apligation. Management will continue to monitor
the situztion a7 each palance sheet date.

vi. Impairment of goodwill and investments (estimate)
The value of goodwill held by tme Group and investments in subsidiary undertakings heid by e Company
is reviewed annually for imparment Tne recoverability of these balances s considered with reference to the
present vaiug of the estimated ‘uture cash flows. These calculations use cash flow projections whch extend
farward forecast pusiress performance together with assumptions sarrounding the expected iife of the
asset, externaliy prepared forecasts and valuations, and any adiustments required to tre discount rate to take
ccount of business nsk. The esumated present value of these future cashk fiows iz senstive to the discount
rate and growth rate usec in the caiculation, all of whick reguire maragement's judgement, Testing of the
carrying valLe has been performed dunng tne year, which has invo.ved several scenanos being modellsd
Based an ths testing and the resulting impairment recogrised on investrmeants, management believes there
is suffcient headroom to suppori the value of goodwill and Investiments in subsid ary entties

Managemant note that impairment of goodwill ard investments s a critical estimate ancd have thereiore
performed sensitivity analyais on the provision. The results of the sensitivity anawsis conclude that a change
of +/ one per cent in the amount provided against the estimates palance at rsk would have resulted in

£5 49 less/more experditure baing charged to the income staternent during the pericd. See note 8 for
the carryirg amaount of the goodwill and investmerts at 20 June 2022,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

L

Analysis of turnover hy category

tending agnvities

Enerqy operat ons - solar, reserve power and w nd
Frorgy operatiors — iomass and landhl
Healthoare operanons’

Florme tanlding

Flore operaucns

FER— R e 1Y SO SR ARy, CHRRRRR st aga 8 AR g s RSk caae T TERVS

2022
£000
42,404
365,958
223,526
45,978
25,034
8,930
711,830

o e Eeraa AARS

2021
£1000
“sess2
175,820
141,826
42,266
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Vroome Bora Healthcare cperations is £17 4m (2021

Earm {020 231 Imdin reation 1o geneices rendered,

Analysis of turnover by geography

Lorited ¥ir

Surope
E

of werlid

2022
E'0DO

F1L 2 relat no to the sgae of retrement vilage unts,

2071
£000

Other income

v S £
84,433 31893

) 23,486 £6l10

T 7iass0 0 asso2

2022 2021

E£'000 £000

3,550 a5




g

|

Tris s stated afer chargmg/icreditirg)

BB AREAR EE L NE A FRE Y FUERER £ B E v s

Amortisaton of intangble 2

ST BRI R R mmemanax e an wau 4 s

note &)

Ofs
Impairment of ntang.ble assets \note &)
{

Depreciaton of ang bie aszets irowe 9)

Aucitors' remunersticn - Corrpany ara tne Grown's conselidated
francial statemens

Auaitors rermuneration  awdt of Compary's subsidianes
AULIICTS rermuUneration - Ron- aJd serneets

Auaites remunerahon — tax complance services

Differance on fore.gn exchange

Cperating lease rertals

£3wR3 t gy ade R AR AR A€t e §5 T TR EBRBATRAGET b 40 w08 AT ot I

frestated)
2022 2021

£000 £0O0

37,849 37,704
7,913 -
101,802 24,697

45 146

819 113
246 513
482 672
7,772 4,402
13,785 7502

Note 26 details the prior penod agustrnents

LR

L R A 8 PR ARG 0y e e 43 wx TR T

Weges and salaries

S AR o A ARG 4 B

Social securty costs

Cither pension costs

2022 2021
... E000 L E000
" gsa32 41283
7,041 3,809
3,233 1676

95,706 46,868

The Group provides a defineo conribunon scnemes for its employeess in the UK. Tne amount recogrised as

zn expanse for the defined contribution scheme s snown in the table above,

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

2022 2021

Number Numicer

Product on
Admirisratoen

Cirectors

e 12 S AL

1,032 639
631 343
3 3
1666 105

Tne Campany had one employee other than Directors during the penod ended 30 June 2022 (2021, none}
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2022 2021
£'000 F G0

B et oA s o P I T hnand S R e SRR DR R A ARk anD T Timace SRR AR RS L P hhaand f0V e b, hersa SETRBLa s, Phiakanse, # P biene T Aabas (44 Rbusere Fiubea

176 163

During tne year no pens:.on cortriputons wese made 1 respect of tre directors (20210 none)

The Group has no ofner key aragemrent (2021 none;,

I D L A

A number of subsicianes of the Croup operate a cash-settied LT P o qualifying em plr\ﬁm wherety
for casn, the amourt of which 5 dete
8

emert date, Troe far vaue T recognised ¢

&G oyees render services ir. exchar

=y ned o Cy

vaiuat\of? of the undertyng sutsd ary The far value of the uability for tme aws

Y made s m

2
2 the vesing pernod The smount

reporting dake ard ar e se

7
D
x
e
T
"
g
(o3
ot
o

of expanse recognsec takes into account the pest available astirnate of the number of uns
rd performance conditons undery'ng 2ac™ award granied

vest under the service &

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions with employees

2022 2021

Number of MNumber of
awards awards

1,914,751 1 640 DOOA
{ Jran*“i during the penod 1763 563 474 Ll
Closmg outstanding balance 3 678 314 l 914 Ll

Opening ollTst .m o] ba ance

e Ya i
{

The total crarge for the vear was £3,133,000 (2021 £1,334.C007 and at the 30 June 2022 there was a
abiity of 22407000 :included withun creditors greater thar one year (2021 £1,334,000)
& o
Interest receivable and similar income 2022 2021
) B ] E'on ) o E£'000
e Dm;t on cark naances 130 357
Interest payabie and simitar expenses 2022 2021

E'OOD £:000

[FIErest Or Cars DOrrcngs 32,192 34,378

Amort s

‘or of isaue 2osts on bark borrow rgs 2,597 1103
[Peoft foss on denaive fingac 3l nstrurrents (1 235) 587
33,554 36068
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
Foooo o e

a) Analysis of charge in year

{reslated)
2022 2021
w o o ERO0 000
Curr;nt ;.axh o coxmeeant s LT n 3 % peeses SRS K AL RS AD SPNREE by ngaer et P47 S0 e Favme e 1 o7 oo ARG B e s rEn ekt
UK corporatian tax charge on profitlioss) for e year (297) 1,648
Adjustrngnte o respect of oo perods 3,196 {2.868)
Foreign wax suf‘em 5 541 -
[(,),trl S mmt) A s e B S e+ e e en e e s B 530 . {121&
Deferred tax: -
Onginat on and reversa of iming differences 6,227 2.074
Adustmants rorespec of erior geriods (3,741) [3.598]
Frrect of charge rtax ratas 5,268 :1491
Tow geforred w7 Tyzsa 9567
Ta;( charge on proﬁif(léss) oﬁ o'rdirnlarry‘aﬁtil\‘lilti‘e; ‘ o S ‘ 16;~2§~4A A - B,349
b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year
Tne tax assessed for the year s higher (2021 hugher) than the stanaard rate of corporation tax n the UK ©
G% (2021 15%) Tre dfferences are explanad oe low
{restated)
2022 2021
‘ ‘ £000
Proﬂtl(loss) before tax o o k o 47,604
oAt oSS e tax o ;
E;r;érao'\o;rt;y@m :‘:‘ UTPL ‘Ot;)le 2020, 1)/5, .045
Effects of
Experses not deduct ble for tax purposes 11,723 16,076
Cther effects (868) 1,022
Income not taxable for ax purposes (8,102) {G,350
Ad ustments N respect of onar perods {545) (£,865)
Effpctﬂ of cnange - tar rate; 5,041 11 48j
Total tax charge for theyear 16294 8,349

c) Factors that may affect future tax charge

The Finance Act 2027 enacted on 10 June 2021 increased the main rate of LK corporauon tax from 13% to
25%, effective 1 Apric 2023 Deferred taxes on the balance sheet have been rmeasured at 25% (2021 25%
which represerts the future corporat:or tax rate that was eracted at the balance sheel date

Mote 26 details the pror period adiustments
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

8 o i e

Group
Cost

cstaned;

At 1 Juty 2027 11

Acqarea through buasiness

combmations (rote 27
Additions
Disposals

udlrl on L’r\r “laf‘o

At30 June2022
Accumulated amortlsat:onr 7
Al duly 2020 restaied)
Diznosals

LS5 Gn transaton

irnpa.rnent

At 30 June 2022

Net book value
At 30 June 2022

A1TEY

Ab 30 June 2021 restaled)

Software Goodwill

{restated)

£000 £ 000
726,602
30,042

964

2125 -
- {21,118}
. 7930
743,456

159,902
- (2.462)
- (192)
- 7913
12 373514
119 202,475
2,970

540,981
857

566,700

EAAEaa, P bna il

Development

Total
rights

E’DOO

£'000

10,216
4,058

737,782
34,100

1.040 3,165
(21,118)
- 7930

15,314 761,859

1034 161,043
- (2,462)

- (192)
7913
57849

1,557 ) zuq 151

13,757 557,708
9 182 576,739

The gain on wanslatiorn of foresgr currency deromirated

ncome Amorusation of goodwll s charged o admniztration Costs

[Derails of the su

el k]

During the year the group gisposad of 2

SAMCri=ahcn was recognises in

sa.e recoon sed in the profit and o

Hag oG lsaaClel

The Coemnpary Fad ~o rtar

Note 26 detais

e BNSr Cenod

rigs acquired dunng tre year eng

of £79r rias beern rec

[
-

ad 3

-

the current year ard £i49 3¢

—~—

5T relaton 1o this rarsacdon was L
cgnises 01 goadvall | nore]
secarty for Lablities at year end (2021 ~ane

tD
[s1}
N
i
9]
¥l

wond farrrs o Finland a5 a result £

Goodwil s cecegn

Z.hrn of accur

8rr

sed Ir other comprehens ve

une 2022 can be found in note 27,

nof qocdw. lwas realised or the sg.e Gair on
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
AL S N I

Land and Power Plant and Network Assets under Total

buildings stations machinery assets construction (restated)

(restated)

Group £'000 £'000 £°000 £000 £000
é;s‘tmy v ot ant s et Phen s e S R S L £ 150
At 1Ly 20270 lrestated) 8531 317467 1695437 27,288 43,277 2,082,000
Arfidhiong R2G 1574 Tieq7 60402 233,000 - 3744830
fea red rougr et 1308 - 51344 - 57663 110,315
Fr/fair valae moveent - - 268 - 5,254 3,662
Trarsters - &8 1,064 20935 132.070) -
Dispncals [135) - (75,951 - (76.086}
At 30 June 2022 10533 319071 1745911 118,686 310,70 2,504,371
Accumulated depreciation T
AT July 2071 4,410 390,059 414,556 1,290 - 510,318
Charge o e year 183 17130 81.141 3348 - 101.802
Tisnsals - - {182} (221) (403
TR mcvarrent - 1776} - - (776}
At30 June 2022 4593 107,189 494742 4,417 - 610941
o : B iioivhiiobo i
At 30 June 2022 5,940 211,882 1,251,169 114,269 310,170 1,893,430
Al SC Ju;e 2‘“__ ifie:ﬁarecj V4,1214 227408 1280878 25,9§8 43,277 - 1581682

included within tangibie assets are capitalised Gnance costs directly atinbutable t

oringing the asset into

use. The net carrying amaourt of assets held under finance leases irctuded in plant. machirery, ixtures and
Sttings s £51,785,000 (2021 £51,534.000 ) Included in network assets is a provision of £1,022,000 for

obsolete equpment and developnent.

Tre Company had no tangible assats at 36 June 2022 {2021 nona)

Note 26 detalls the prior pencd adjustments,
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10 s

Unlisted
investments
Group i ) E'OO
Costand netbookvalue o e
At July 2021 15,000 11,000
Additionz 129452 125452
(105,000} (105,0@}&0‘)
At30dumez022 35,452
r“ 0] Jume 202 ) ) lwlOOD”
Subsidiary
undertakings Total
Company e 00O E000

Cost

ALZG June 2021 2311678 2311678
Addinors 228,200 228,300
""" 2,539,978 2,539,978

Accumulated impairments

At 30 June 2022 195,312 185,312

Reversal of impairents {195,312 (195.312)

WROSTMEnts. o - ] -

At 30 June 2022 - -

Net book value

At 30 June 2022 2 539 978 2,539,978
20 J_, e 2021 2, h6 360 2,116,356

Details of related urgertakings are shiown in noie 29

Unlisted investrnenis corprse tre Group's ol Jlrg of the members cap-al of Terao (L5 aeram

husness, and s charehold rgin Bracxan Tradng Lirmteg Fern co-founded Teride LLP in Sicrober 2022
tne ntentionr, o coﬁ.d;c g anroportion of e f uu'ﬂ trade trrough the partrersiip Adaitions and o-8pc

of umlisied ‘nvastmerts relate o irvestrents ang dive

requirerients and o Ut

time to trre. Ferr's imvestiment in Bracke~ Trad rg mie
Terdc

The arrectors do niot zorsider

radirg Limited.

se surpl

o LU= or Bracken

=G

strients 1r Tengd

30 dune 2022w

Tracing Lemited o be s

P i

5 funds Fermmas a >f"‘.a\ srarenolding n Pracken~ Tr:}-’:;‘p": Lirrred fromr

“NeEwith Farn’s casn

vas ENGLE 30 Jun

o 2021 Eriy
tskngs of Fern
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I"‘l"

Cash ncludes cash in hand and deposits repavable on cemand

Restricted cash represents cazh for which the Group doos not have immediate and direct access or for
which requlatcry or Legal reqguirements restrict tne use of the <asn,
Group

2022 2021
et e . R £000 £000
Caeratbarkard nband e 105,823 17141
Restricted cash 60,592 55,337
Cash at bank and in hand B - R | 256 a5 172478

Resiricted cash s comprised of £726 GO0 heln in Escrow and £59,866,000 of cash hela in subsidiaries weh

bi-annuzl distribution w Naows.

Fa Corapany had a cash balance of £6422.000 as at 30 June 2022, none of which was restricted (2021

nonel

1250

Group
2022 2021
e E000 LE000
26,023 18,593
156,918 73,923
© 7 1sa479 9aril

Tre armount of stocks recogrised as an expense dunng the year was £120,413.000 (2021 £41,212 000)
included in the fuel spare pa“ts and consumatles stock valle 15 a provision of £390,000 for unusabie fuel
stock (2021 £459.000) Inclucing i property development WIP is a provis'on of £928,000 for warranty and
site specinc provisons

There nas been no mparment recogrisen durng the year on stock {2021 none). Mo invenory has been
piedged as security for hablties (2021, none;

o

Tre Corrpany had no stocxs at 30 June 2022 (2021 ron

s&ma%@%ﬁs .

e.» g dan
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
iE oo

Group Company
irestated) i
2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 E'000 £600 §

An:ountsfallmgduea ﬂeronemyear e A€ Srn 1 PSR« S50 s 1 5% AU v < Rssuen 1R et VR e PR 0 l
Loans and advarces o customers 137,662 16,128 - - 5
Amounts falling due within one year ]
Loans and arfvances 1o custormers 223,239 369,384 - - :

ade debtoms 42,050 16121 392 o]
Arnourts owed by relarad varuas {nolae 24) - 3950 32,950 12,751 !
Otner deptars 20,199 24,972 3,843 5,008 !

Corporgtion tax - 6,603 2,527
Ceorvative Friarcabirstiurnaris inohe 23 54,409 6469 - -
ents ard aCcrued INnCome 145,602 1543 176 32616

Loans and advances o customears
|

Prepaymeris and 2coiugt 1ncome a

NG interest s charged on amounts oweo by group undertakirgs, as e aJistancing calancas are unsecurad i
and repayakle on demvand {2021 none)

MNote 26 detais the prior penod ac:Jstmerts. i

3
i
i
i
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
140 .
Group Company
{restated)
2022 2021 2022 2021

‘ £000 £000 £'000 £GOO
Eank to;;ls and o;:f‘;:arafts Lno;’.‘-: »lzi)» I 87,732 o &4/58*6 o - -
frade creditors 58,004 23390 76 16
Other taxanon and sooal secieity 8,161 - - -
Cther creditcrs 24,362 55906 - -
Arviourts duie to related paries (rote 24 - - - 20.203
Finare leases {note 18] 2,428 3,147 - -
Derivative fingnc al rstrumerts (rche 215 - 143 - -
Accruals and deferr ad= 72,08? o 3?3 2705

Group
2022 2021

Amounts falling due between one and ﬁvg years i £000 B £000
Eank nans and overdrafs (noe 16) e 383,070 o 247,297‘
Finance leases (note 16) 5,899 6,125
Dervative anancial imstruments (nose 21) - -
Cther creditors 5,364 5415
Group

2022 2021
Amounts falling due after more than five years B E'QOO £000
‘BVahmk‘L‘oar}s‘ar‘wd o;/eraraﬁs inote 16) A o S'Tiiil-lﬁmww 577.235
Finance leases (note 16) 24,676 24495
Darwvatve Tnancial rstrurments (nce 24 - 42,772
Ioté! crecktors falling due sfter more than éne vear v 952;425 903,339

Tne Company has no creditors due in greater thar one year.

Amodrts cwed to relatea parties are un

Note 26 details the prnor penod adjustmenis

secured, non-interast bearing and repayable on demand
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
ié Ll Y

2022
Group £000

b 07 g} B rae  * TEAhanuans T S S S USSR ¥ Y PRSI CP PRI TEPRVL S RS S T T Lo

ue m one yasar B7,732
383,070
573, 416

i 044, 218—~»w

Due betweern ong and fve

871,918

The Company had no nank ioans at 20 June 2022

Thie bank oans are secured against assets of tre Group w.it @ach (oan as Feia By the sussidiary

Interest rate

Virers Sreray L

Cedar Fnergy ana Infrastrus-ure T imnized LIBOR/EURIBOR plus 2 00% -

3 month EURIBOR plus
1.20%, Fixed rate 170%

Elios Lrermy 3 1.2% + 6 month EURIBOR 56,079
Boomrerang Tnergy Liremed & month SOMNIA plus 1 50% 284,348

649% (swap rate of 459% +

1.9% margin)
Mialten Renswabio Drergy UK similed & manth SONIA plus 2.35% 85,718
Dulacca WE Hodco BTY iin 1.7% + BBSY 31,614
5% + SONA + 2.5% non-

Thvia forrey Limites . .
s e e utilisation fee 12,306

Slios Lrergy 2 30,946

Darlingtor Soint Solar Farer Bty 1im ted 114,026

Zestec Assel Manangement Limited Fixed rate 2.5% 43

1,044,218

sh

T e month SONIA plUS 160% 429,138

Wil DWW

295,344

103435

C87.018

SONIA replaced 1150R as ine effective ntergank landirg rate sysem from Llaruary 2022 Ther

resuittea it ro commercizb IMmpact 1o the biusness

Finance leases
The futurz micimum inarce tease payments are as feliows

2022
£'000
73]/,’7’»3" qJe ,,,,, e e St
Not later than one year 2,428
Later thar one yast and nat [2rer than five years 5,899
Lare tran ‘e yesrs 76,461
Tetal gross payrrects 84,788
5 finance charge (51,785)
Carrylng amount of the habllity - - 7 . “33,003 7

A
o
C\J

rate n

o

2021

_E000

3166
6,196
72,013
81375
(476091
23,756

The finarice leases prmarnly relate o a eaced bulding ang healncare equiprient There are nio cortngant
Y &

OJ

rental, renews or ouronase oot on clauses Renis pay

secured agairst the eased assets

The Campany rad no finance leases at 30 Jure 2027

tle increase py local inflatior Finarce leasss are
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

27

Decommissioning (restated)
provision Deferred tax
Group £000 _E'000

B B B R g T VS T T

{restated)

Total
E£'000

At Juy 2021 20438 20933

Increase recognised in prof and loss 21 11455
Increases recogrised throuch other Comprehierss.ue inaome - 18,202
Irpairment ‘ 16 o
Ir cresse recognised in fixed assets 23656 -

,

Recogrised on subsidiazy acguisitions - (3.568)

Adjustrrent i recpent of pnor years - 5465)

Unwirding of diszount 245 -
Adustrment relatireg to change In accounting stimate (3.373) -
Gar or ransiation 15 -

At 30 June 2022 41,023 41,597

41,372
11,516
18,202
16
23656
(3.568)
(5465}
249
(3.373)

15

82,620

'

The decormr’ss aning prevision =5 hela to cover future oblgatons o return :and on whicr: there are
aperatioral wind, b.omass and so.ar farms, to therr originat condition. Tre amaounts are not expecied to be

utinsed for ir excess Of 25 years.
The Corpary had no provisions at 30 June 2022

Nate 26 details tne grior pencd adjustmients

18 o o0 e nuan L e

The Group and Company have the following snare capitat

Group 2022

Allotted, called-up anq fully paid £'000

2021
£'000

1616622011 (2021, L4536,755,258)

Cirdinary shaves of £0 10 each 161,662

145,676

Company 2022
Allotted, called-up and fully paid ) o S £'000

TR R

EIT S . PG B

1,495,755255]

Cirdinary sharcs of £0.20 cach 161,662

2021
£'000

145676

st g Re g

Durng the year the Group issued 119,866,754 (2024 1,501,189,278 ) ordinary shares of £0 L0 each for an
aggregate nominal value of £11,987.000 (2021; £150,120,000} Of the shares issued during the year, total
considerztion of £203,750,000 (2021: £2,316,695.000) was paid for the shases, giving rise to a prermium of
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

E191. 753,000 2021 173 08,500, Dunng the year the Group purchases nil (2021, 4,444 020) of itz own
orarary shares of £0 10 eazh with an angregate nominal value of Enil (2021 £444 0001 Tota. consideratior

130, d
of Enil 12021, £6,844,000) was pad for the shares, giving nse 1 a prermium of £~ {2021 £6,399.000)

The Groun has adopted predecessor accouning princies a5 it was formea as part of a group
‘econstrucion,

tand share oremium accourt are treated as if they had always
existed Movemernts

ng hoh before and after e restructuse are reported as Tovements
in the Group share cap-:a.‘

During the year the Compary issued 119 866 754 (2021 1.501.199.278) crdinary shares of £0 16 each for an
of £11,587.000 (20 21‘ £150,123,00G0). Of the shares 1ssucd during the year, totat
GC (27‘21 £2,31£,655 000 was pad for the snares, gving nise 1o & premium of
dr {2021 4,444 G200 of 1ts cwn
a*** with a7 aggreyate normrinagl vatue of Enil 12022 544/—! 000 Total

d(}gr(—"gu‘n nominal va.u

00 was paid for the shares, giving

of ordinary shares There are no resincions on ite astricution of aiv.aerics and the

Cash flow hedge reserve
Tne cash low hedga reserve < used o recard ransactiors ansing from the Grouy'

O
o
=
L
0
o
)
ol

\
e}
=

hedging arrangemerts,

Merger reserve

Mhe rmerger reserve anses rom ne d flererce oetween the fair value of tne sharesissues ard the bock

va.ues of the subsidiari

ACQUINCS,

B9 s o

as folows.

The movernent in non controllng inferests w

Group
Naote 2022 2021
) £'0q0 ~ £00n
3,721 9.570
Sale of S:Jbg'd‘a‘r}f Lmd?rramrgi& ard acquisiion o7 - (1.847)
of nor-contrelling interest
sive 1055 attroutabie -0
IESivE 1055 At Gtal {6.622) (4,007
- Ing nteres's
ALAC June 2727 {2.901) 3721
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

20 Do

Az at 30 June 2027 there were o cantingencies across the Group or Company.

2

Carry ng armocunts of financial assets and liatilities

Group Company
{restated)

2022 2021 2022 2021
e P4, 220 £'000 £ 000
Carrying amount of financial assets
Debt instriments reeasured at amortised 205t 423,150 430 556 4,235 17,767
Measured at fair value through profic and oss - 6469 - -
Measures at farr value through cthor compzaharsive inoome ) 54,?09“w7 - .
Carrying amount of financial liabilities
Measured at arnortised cost 1,126,163 956,384 76 16
Meassuren 3t fair value througn other comprehersive incorma - 42,772 - -

rote 26 detais the pnor penod agjustirments,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Derivative financial instruments
The Group's financial rick mariagernens seeks to minimise the exposure o market rsk credi ne<, Lauidity
ard cash Low sk, and energy market nsk

a) Market risk
Energy market risk

The energy sector i riemcing sigmifican: wrbulence and there g a nsk that forecast levels of ncome are
rct achieved due to ‘ i wholesale enargy prices, off-take conracis or governmert subsd.es

Charges in Goverr y, o reguiator mierventicn may result in reduced income streams withir the

qroup due te addiuonal levies,

Currency risk
The Group presents its consoudated financial staterrerts i stering and conducts business in a nurber of
other currencies, principaly Eure and Austraian do

roup s exposed to foregr

excharge risik LU (o exchange rate movererts, which afect the Group's transact onal experses ard the

siaron of carmnirg and ~et assety o its non-sterling cperations

Transactional exposures
Trarsact onal exposlres anse frorn administrative a-d otner expaense in curenaes other he Groug's

prasentanc-al currency (Stertr

- The Group enters into forward foreigr exchangs cortracts anc foreign

2xCmange swaons W mitigaie the exchange rate nsk for certzin foreég.\ urre'v“y payaoles ang receipts The

forward ru"vﬂﬂcy contracts and swaps are measursa at far value, which s determined using vauation

rechrigees that ulilise ooservable inputs Tre key inputs used in vawing the denvalves are the forwaro
excherge rates for GBF AUD and CB2EUR On 30 June 2022 the fair valus of the fore gn currency

contracts was an asset of £nl (2021, £5,469,000) ana a hatilisy of £ (2021 £143.000)

Translational exposures

Baiance shea: transialiona, exposures anse on consolidation oo the retransiation of the balance sheet of
nori-sterling oneratans into swerling, tre Group's presentational currercy Tae level of exposure is reviewen
by maragernent and the potental foreign exchange movement is withi~ an acceptable level oF rigk and

therefore. typically, the Group's policy 1C 1ot 1© activaly hedge inese exoosures.

Interest rate risk
The Grouo has exposure o fiuciuations morterest rates or s corrowirgs Where the Group enters irto
Dorrowl g crangements wita floating rate interast, a swag arrargement s enterec inic (o fix a porton of

r order to miigate against an increase 10 nterest rates Tre port on of nterest 1o be fixed s
assessed on 3 case by Case basis, r‘ﬁaﬁagemer: car elect whetrer to hegge account for these
ger-er o acoy hedge acccunting for interast
i fac uly ang mature on the same date
by roexcess of fve years and the ‘el
1o
Price risk
Tre Group s a short- o mredium-term lercer 1o the resizertial gproperty mar<et To re exient tnat there s

e pricas that affects the prop

detencration v the ievel of no
t

LS
agamnst, there 13 2 risk thatl the Grouo ™May not "eZous ite

raure of the ns a~d tre conservalive level of lcan to s
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Credit risk
Customer credit nisk is m-igated through the Group‘s credit control polcies, which are in place to ensure
that our customers have ar approprate creait nistory and are monitored on an ongoing basis

c) Liquidity risk

Licuidity nsk are managed oy ensaring that sufhcient cash s avai.abie to fund contnusng ana future operations.

Liquidity risk arisez on bark koaans in place across the Groug anc is managed througk carefu. moritonng of
covenanrts and sensibie levels of debt Borrowing 1s on & long-term basis, wreareas our revenude is recewved
throLgrout the year, s well 35 intarest and fedﬂmpriom or our short-term loar pook. Casr flow riex s
managed through ongoing cash flow forecatung 1o ensure recaipts are sufficiert to meet hamlit es as trey
fall due.

22 v e s e

At the vear erd the Growp 7ad capital commitments as foilows.

2022 2021
Group E'000 E ‘000
Coartracted ‘or but act provided i these finana at statements 347,254 90 156
Undraee facilizies an loans 1o borowers 173,600 92683

At 20 June the Group bad tota. future minimum tease paymenrts under non-cancellable cperaung teases

2z follows:

2022 2021

Land and Other Land and Other

buildings buildings
R . £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Payments due-
Nor later than one year 8,707 661 8031 749
Later than one year and not later than Aive 31,627 726 30,369 1686
Years
Later than five years ... 95664 0 0000- g S5

135 998 1,387 157,352 2444

Trne Group had no other off-balance sheet arrangements (2021 none]

Jnder sections 394A and 4794 of the Cornpanies Act 20CE, the parent company Fern Trading Limited has
guarantesd all outstanding liabilities or those companies taxng the exemption to whic the sulbsidiaries list
on pages 79 to 90 weres supject to at the 30 June 2022 untit they are sausfied in full These lailities total
E915m. Such guarantees are enforceable against Fern Trading Limitad by any person to whom any such
labiity is due.

The Company had no capital or other cernmitrents at 30 June 2022,
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i, & sunsichary of the Group, successiully sold

Or 11 July 2022, Ferr Trading Sevelopment Limitea {FTOL
n Pont Heideos Fry Limited o Gctopus Australa Master Trast A small profin of £850.01

Orithe 1st of Decerber 2022, the Group acguirad nghts 10 a £25m credir voucher and tne right to Jse
rmcbile lcenses frorm Three JK, via a Strategic Connectivity Agreerment, thos raking the first step towards

becoring an mobile virtual networ< operatar,

of trarzactions enteras 1IN0 banwesn two or more

Croup, proviced that any subs.diary whicn 1s & party o the transacton 1s wholy Gwned Dy

Durnng the yvear, fees of £77924,000 (2027 £61,154.000! were 2harged to the Group by Octopus

fnvestments Limited, a reded party due to iz significant irfuence over the enuty Qctoous 'mvestrients

Limited was recharged tegal ard orofess
2

o
year erd, an arrourt of £5,500 (2021 £2159.C00) was outstarding whicn is included ir trade cradirors

[N Tal

nal fees wotallrg £10,155 (2022 £16 000} by the Grouo At trne

The Grouo s entitdled o a profit share as a result of s investreent in

rraragement parsonrel in commaen In 2022 a share of prefit egua. to £5245,000 ¢

neen recogrised by the Group. At the year end, tre Crous has ar interest n the memaer“s capital
£35,452,000 (2021, £11,000,000; and accrued nacrre due of £5.276,000 (2021, £473 000)

!/w

ngacges N lerd ng acuv tes which inciude balances providec to related parties Regarzing

enbities with key managenent perscrnnegl it common, oans of £6% 4% 2020 E173,2224000). accrued

ncome of £19.789.000 2021 £26.2C3.00C) ard deferred income of Eml i2021 £101,01 J?J were cutstanding
c17

SELOLOY and fees of 2394 000 (2021

0,000

B

at year end Du.fér“.g tre year interest income of £72160,000 tZCZl
£3¢.000) were recognized I relat-on o these loans.

During the year the Group acouired 3 reserve gower coemganies from companies maragead by Octopus

Irvestments Limted, & related sarty S

ez note 27 ai for detads of the companies acquired

Az at 30 June 2522 Enil (2021 £3.550,275) was owed t¢ the Company oy Dracker Tradng Lirmited, a related
e ne

-

party oy key mana nt aersonrel in commaon.
Y

Other than the transactions d scased above, the Corrpany's other related oarty rarsacticons were with its
wrslly owned sussiziary members of ine Groun.

Inthe opinor of the drectors, there s no warate conrolung party OF parent Corpany
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

26 oo oL L L

a) Group structuring review
We nave conducted a review of prnor years’ accourting treatrnent of interedmpany restructuring In this
review management identified unamartised goodwill
previcus years to reflect the implementafion of a

balances in relation 1o these transactions. We nave
when the relevant
1z and oss for 2021

adjustec the mMaortsation backaaed Lo

aansacucns cccusred. The accumulated mpact for the gocdwilt amortisation in the profis
20

was E8m (2020 £5 3rn; the mavement of £2 /m has been restated trroe Jgho it the 2025 comparative
numoers. A surrnary of the impact of the correction 1s provided below
Year ended Adjustments Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) (restated)
Group o £’000 £'000 EBOGM
Goodwill 587 088 (5,335) 578,653
Reraired earnirgs 41185 5335 46,520
Year ended Accumutated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated] (restated)
Group ) £000 -~ E000 £'000
Goodwll 602711 (8.049) 594,667
Remamed carmings {123,920) 8,049 {115,571)

As part of the review

of the irtergroup restructurning

menucned acove, management identifed one of he

restructures had besn incorrectly accodrntad for in a sub sector of the group. No further errors were

discovered in the review. The accumukated impact for goodwil amcorisation in ©
of £1 2m has been restaied trarougnou tne 2021 comparative
ined earrungs was offset by £2 Im written back agairst baa

was £25m (2020 £1.3m), the movement
numoers. This impact to the 2020 opening reta
s. Managemert nave corrected the identified errcr with the following impact

debt expanseas

e profit and

loss for 2021

Year ended Adjustments Year ended
30 June 2020 20 June 2020
(as stated) {restated)
Group o wE'“()l:lt) £000 o E' 000 )
Goodwl " ogsoes (29,183) 554805
Retained earmirgs 41,185 899 42,084
Deabtors 842,549 {2.724) 859,825
Creditors armounts fating due vethir one year {232.813) 496 (232.317)
Fixed assets 1,346,655 30,512 1377167
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated) {restated)
Group £000 £ 090 o £°000
Cocawdi T 502,711 (7963 574,748
Retamed earmings {123,920 {321 {124.241)
Debrtors 600,726 (2,724) 538,002
Cregitors amounis falling due within ane yoar (207,318) 496 (206,822)
Fixed asset 1,551,170 30,512 1.581.682
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Deferred tax adjustment

We have conductes a review of all consal dation entnes at subsectio p We nave identaed an
C‘

errcr rei@ing 1o 2019 when deferred tax adustments were entared 3 seentry and had

supsequently ~ot beer revorsed We have chieckec the tax oer suosiciary account and ~ave ensured that the
o .

retevart haarces are correct The error was posted at a corsclicated leve! only and has now been correcies
Year ended Adjustment Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)

Group £000 E£000

- ot R REOMREEILABARAD rEan RRARARAEEERA

e REL ARSI ERRY R b

Retained e2rrngs 41,185 {4,764) 26421
Craditers amounts falirg dae wirhin one year (732,813 4764 {(#26,045)

This hias a <nock a

Year ended Adjustment Year ended

30 June 2021 30 June 2021

(as stated) {restated)

Group E£'000 ! £ 000

Rota ren ezaings (123.920) {4,764 1128.684)
ors. arncunts falling due within one year (207.318) 4764 (202,554)

Cre

le

In prepanng the ax computations for 2022, the Group's tax advisors nave noticed an overlocked
ASILMIpION N previous years tex conschdat or calculatiors Within the previousy unrecoynised deferred tEx
assefs held with in the group some were avelacle or 5 consolidated level to offser tne Group's deferr

[w)
©
=

= had beer corre‘ct\y recagnsed A

wabiliy Gnoan indindual company bass the ceferred tax in orev Ous yes
oart of 1rese deferred assets are 1N relation w cash flow h@dge h

for witrin otner comprehensive noome Tre accumulates mp
for 2021 was £15m (2020, £15 the maoverent of 300k has o

comparative numbers.

A sumrmary of the impact of the correcten s proviced celow.

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) {restated}

Group £'000 ) ;'000 '000
Rota ~eq 23mings 41,185 (15,299} 25,886
Cash fow recge reserie £3.3857 [2.875) 59,962
6484 19,174 (17,2100
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated) (restated)
HOUD o e oo ere s e s s s £'000 Fooo ... [EO00
Petared eamngs  (123920) Tisesy | amons
Cash flow hedge reserve 17,098 (2.119) 14,979
seierred ax provisions (38,145 17212 (£0,933)
Summary of prior period adjustments:
Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)
GrouP o , £000 foco .. FoO00
Retained eanirgs T 41,185 (131;329); S 2735;6
Gocdwll 583,988 {34,517 548,471
Liebtars 842,545 (2.724) 839,825
Fixed asses 1.346,655 30,512 1377167
Deferred tax provisions (36,484) 15,174 {17 310}
Cash flow hedae reserve 63,837 {3875 58,562
Credingrs amounts aling due witnn one year (232.813) 5259 (227,554}
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) {restated)
Group ‘£’000‘ o £'000 £000
Retaned earmings o T ET-Cr (12129 (136,049
Gaoodwitl 602711 (36,011 566,700
Debtors 600,726 {2.724) 598,002
Fied assets 1,551,170 0512 1581682
Delerred tax provisions (33.145) 17,212 (20,933)
Cash: flow hedge reserve 17.098 (2.119) 14,979
Cregtors amounts fallng due witnin cne year (207.318) 5,259 (202,059
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
BF S o
a) Reserve Power acquisition

On 2 July 2021, the Groug acguired 9 reserve power sites theougr tre purcnase of 130% of the share caoital

for consideration of £18.

The following

T summarise e consderation paia by the Group, the fair value of tho azsets scauirea,

4
and the habilites assomed at the acques ton cae

ansideration £000

Details of the fair value of the net assets accured and goodwll arising a< as ollows
Book value Adjustments Fair value
£000 EOQC E£000C
3 80,788 {28,553) 52.23

Trade ana omer recevables 294 - 294
3

FIEcE Gss

Prepayrronts 635 - 63
Cash and cash eguivaients 7858 - 7858
Iradle and other credirars {2.208] - (2,206}
{58,816) - (58816}
28553 (28553 -

Total consideration -

Gooowil resuitng from the business combination was nil

The carssidzted staternert of comprehersive income for the year inclaces £45 803 000 revenus and 3
proft after tax o7 £636, ol

48]

acquisition.

ﬁ
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o
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Doveryard Limited acquisition
On 22 Cctoper 2021, the Group acguired Doveryard Limited and its subs diary through the purchase of
100% of the share capita. for consideration of £13,414,000,

The following tables summarise the consideratior paid by the Group, the far vaue of assets acguired, and

hapilities assumed at the acquisition date.

Consideration £'000
Cash 12.377
1,037

Total consideration I Wﬂmmﬂ,414

Cirectly attnibutable costs

Details of the fair value of the net assets acquired and goodwill ansing are as follows,

Book Adjustments Fair
values vatue
e goe0 . £000 o ERR
Trade ard other receivabes 52 - 52
Prepayments and accrusd mncorme 123
Trade ard other creditors 457)

Net assets acquired 347

Total consideration

Goodwll resultung from the business combiration was £13.067.000 and has an estimated useful life of 25
years, reflacting the lfespan of the assets acquirea,

Tre consclidated statement of compreheansive Income for tne year inc.udes £nil of revenue and & loss
pefore tax of £125.000 in respect of this acquiziion,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

c) Dulacca acquisition

O 27 August 2021, the Group accouires Dulacca WF Holdro PTY Jtd and s three subsidiaries through th

purchase of 100% of the share capital for consideration of £112.680,0C00.

M

b}

The following tables summarise tre consideration paic by the Groug, the fair value of the assets acguirerd,

and the latilites assome at the acguisuon date A lst of the ertties acqured ncladed in note 29

Conslderatlon AUD'C00 Exchange Rate

£000

C,a. al 217557 1 8904 115,085

Cirectly attrizutable costs 1126 18904 595

Total consaderatmn 218,683 115,680
Details of tne fair value of the net assers acquired and irtargibie arising are as folows

Book Adjustments Fair Book Adjustments Eair

values value values value

AUD'000 AUD'DDO AUD’OOO £ 000 £°000 £000

Fued assets 107,633 - 107,632 56937 o

Trace ana oiher rece vables 10,131 - 10,131 5,357 -
Cash anrd cash equivalents 102072 - 103072 54,525 -
r” U’I 5 ar.u delevw' COrme (10 952) - (10 352) b /9 7) -
Net assets acqu:red - UMZOB 884 o 209 884 111 026 R
i;rngwp e 8 799.WM e e
Totalcon;iaeratlon S A A 218 683

55937
5,357
54525
(5793
111,026

4 6542 h

115,680

Intangioles resuiong frorm the asser purchase was £4.654 000 and has an estmared useful life
refieciing the ofespan of tne assets acguired

gted statement of comprenensive incor-e for the year ncudes £nil of revenue anc

ds
000 in respect of Tras acguisiion

of 30 years,

alos afer
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

d) Zestec Asset Mangement Limited acquisition

On 31 Janvary 2021, tne Group acquired Zestec Asset Mangement Limited a project sources for rooftop
soiarn, througn the nurchase of 100% of the share capital 'or consideration of £4,765,000

The follow:ng tables summarise the consideraton paid oy the CGroug, the fz'r value of assets

Labilites assumed at tie acqusitor date

acquired and

Cons:deratlon £000
Deferred consderation -
Direc lj attributabic costs 1093
Totalconstderatlon o B ) ”4765 .
Cetalls of the far value of the net assets acquires and goodwill ar sing are as follows'
Book Adjustments Fair
values value
. ] £000 £'000 £'000
F\xec assets o & 156 - 156 "
Trade and other Crec 1ors {574} - {574]
Trade and other receivahbles 400 - 400
Cash anag cash equivaients 1,019 - 1015
Otner loans “e) - g
Net assét'{;cqu}.}éa S e 955
:I'otal consideration T R ‘ 4,765
Goodwll resulting from the busingss combination was £3,810.000 and ras an estimatec useful life of 10

years, refiecting the estimated lfespan of the assets acquired,

Tne consoldates statement of comprehensive income for the yvear inciudes £198,000
before tax of E494,00C‘ in respect of ~hiz acquisition

cf revenue and a loss

'

i
|
:
i
'
i
:
i
:
i
i
i
i
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

e} Elivia Homes acquisition
On 23 May 2072, the Group acgured Divia Holdings Limited and is sutbsaizries, through the purchase of
100% of tre share captal for corsigeration of £ 31,684,000

The following tables stmmarise tne Consideration pai by e Group. the fair value of asset:

de s acquired, ans
habilites assurmned at the acguisilion date, A Lst Of the e~tiles acquired are included in noe 29,
q

Consnderatlon £'000

nrmae T e IR0 YR Vet RTINS LG8 T amtERAT TS sens e v e BER L iwhues 5T etV e A g sSY EO

30,999
685

D\rfa(tl,ﬂ artrbutao

Total consideration 31, 534

Detals of the fair vaue oFf the rer assats acgured 21d coodwill anzing are as follows.

Book Adjustments Fair
values value

) E 000 £'000 . £‘000“ ’
Intangle assels 11,767 - 11767
Stock 69939 E 59,929
Trade and other debrors 2609 - 2,609
Cash and catr egu vslers 11,603 - 11603
Acrruals and deferred incorre (£20) - 420)
Provisions (G320 - (33
Ceferied tax 6,000 (14009 4600
g o {6(\ 4J5\, - - .. (69'45

Net assets acqulred - _ 31,533 (1 400) 7 30,133 7

Qoﬁuw 1,551

Total consaderahon 31,684

Coodwel retulling from the susiness combmation was £1,550 000 ard has an extmates use’ul ufe of 10
years, reflecting the wfespar of the azsefs acquired
omprehensyg ncoma for the year includes revense of £25 024 500 anv 2

~resnect of s acgus uon
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Our reported results are preparec in accordance with United Kingdom Accoursing Stanaards, including
Fnancial Recorting Standard 102, as detaied in ne Sinanciai Statements startng o0 gage 35 of the Annual
Renart. in measunng cur performance, the financia. measures that we use include those that have been
derves from our reported results in oraer 16 elimirate factors that distort year-cn-year compansaons. These
zre considerea ror-GAAZ fnancal measures

Net debt
We provice ret debt in addibon 1o cash and gross debt as a way of assessing our oversll cash position and it

15 corrputed as follows

2022
Neote £'000

B AR O E BN F B REUDERAAN GT AR B b oo e s st 203 0 T £ R LT BRSO R U R R T AR RA N H g 0 SED X O R SR e B v o

Bank loars and ovorgralls 5 1044218

Cithor 'oans 14,15 5364 -

Grossdebt ' " s0a9582 s71918
ndl i biar 1 (256.415) 172479)

Cash at [}

Netdebt ' 793,167 699,440
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

EBITDA

Earnings before intarest, tax, depraciation and amortsaton Je31T0AT} s calcuiaran by adjuszmg profit after
tax for nterest, tax, depreciation arnd amortisaton, N addinon Lo income and expenses hat do rot relate ©
the day to day operauons of tne Group We orovide EBITDA in acditon 10 profit after tax as it aliows us to

assess our perforrarce withcut the effects of financing ard capital expencitures.

The toliowing Table detalls tme adjustments made 0 the reported results’

p:-oﬁt[([oss)for th,e hna"cml year Lt ¢ ey S5 mebm s e e cenas S 2 . 31310 T (31 012)
Add
Ammortsation o inangible astets 2 37849 37,704
Imparment of rtangbie aisels g 7913 -
Teorecation of tar sets 2 101,802 84,697
Interest payable anc @ 5 33554 36,067
Excepuongt herrs 1,105 -
Tan 7 16294 8,345
less
Income frorm gtiver nxed asset investnronts {5,249) (443}
Share of aperaling proft o joint veniure - 11.755)
Profit on disposal of subsiares (29.532] (28.568)
Interest recenat e and sirvifar ncorme £ (130) (997}
EBITDA B 194,916 104,036

Note

2022
£000

(restated)
2021

ote 26 details the pricr perog agestrments.

!
!
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
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Detals of the sibsdiary undertakings are as follows:

Country of Class of Principal
N s s s ICOTPOYAtiON  shares Holding activity . ..
Aofjofsggton Solar Energy Bolding Lrrated” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Adalinza Solar 57V 1 Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Agrisui-2 SARL! France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
A; Networks Limiied™ UK Crdinary 100% Haolding company
Alpoints Fiore Limm'ted®” UK Crdinary 100% ;irtfjrsur;it(\)r;ork
Auchercarroch Energy Limited®” UK Ordmnary 100% Energy generation
Augunirie Land Company Limitea*™ UK Ordinary 1G0% Energy generation
Avenue Solar Farm umited” LK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Bankury Fower Lirmted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Batsolaire & SARLY France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Bstizclare 7 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Holding company
Beetley Energy Limited” LK Ordinary 100% Energy gencraticn
Ba ghton Energy Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Dormant company
Bemnmneun Wind farm Ltd”™ UK Ordinary 10G% Energy generation
Bellhouse Erergy Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Birch Eszate Solar Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Blaby Sciar Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
BNRG IOW Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Bolam Energy Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Boomerang Energy Limited UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Boreas Erergy Limiten™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Bratton Flerming Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Breck Solar Limteg™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Eng{g?dym Solar Developrments Holdings Uk Ordinary 100% Holding company
Bryn Yr Odyn Solar Developments Limeted” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Bury Power Limited”™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Cadoxtan Reserve Power Limited” UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generalion
Caicias Energy Lim-ted™ Uk Ordinary 100% Holding company

Cark Limited® Ireland Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

el Solar Farra L

Cathkin Energy Lirmited?™

Cedar £nergy and infrastruciure Limited

CEPE Bercercrne SARLY

Cenraie Eallierne de Freducton d Energe de

Crandipois SARL
CEPE de la Salesse SARLY

CERE de Lacorr
Producten d Erfrg ce Lacombe) SARLY

CEPE ge Marsanine )AP.
CEPE Hawr du 530
CEPE de la Roche Quats Fivieres SART
CEFE chu pays de St Se'rne SARLY
CERS3AS

Chetzon Meadow Energy cimite

Chuston Selar Farm Holdimgs Lirmted ™
Chittering Solar Two Lirited””

Cligwyn Erergy Limiteg’

Clann Farm Limited”

Claramconid Solar SRV 1 Lire
CLP Developments Limites’

CLP Envirogas L miteg™
CLP Services Lirmited”

CLRE 1591 Crmued”

CLPE RO - 1 Lirnizen™
CLPE RCCT - 2 Lirmited™
CLPE ROC = 3 Lirnited™

e (Centrale Eo:lenre de

Country of

mcorporatlon

o R

UK
UK
UK
UK

France

France

France

France

France
France
France
France
France
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK
UK
UK

UK
UK
UK

Class of
shares

R g % 4 g8 e 0 sre

Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary

Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Holding
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
160%
100%
100%

Principal

act:wty

Energy ge'weratlon

Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding compary

Erergy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Erergy genaration
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding comparny
Energy generation
ciding company
tnergy generation
Dormant company
Erergy generation
Erergy generation
Dormant company

Provision of OgM
services

Dormant company
Dormant company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Hotding company
Energy generation
Energy genearation

Erergy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name .
CLPE ROC = 34 Lirnited™

CLPE RO2C -4 Lirniteq™

CLPZ ROC - 44 Limited™

Clyne Power Limited™
Colsterworth znergy Limitea™
Corrcn Bridge Energy Limited™
Cotesgach Erergy Lirmted™

Cour W nd Farm (Scotland) Lirn'ted '™
Crapneil Farm Lirriteg™

Crayfern Homes (Soutn Caast) umitec!s

Crayfern Lim.ied !

Crayfern Sunley (Shinfoid) Limiteg!

Craymarsn Lirnited”

[¥a)

Cressing Sclar Farm Limited™
Culvery Power Limited™

Cynon Power Limited”

Dafen Reserve Power Limited”

Dairy House Solar Limited”
Deepdae marm Solar Lm-ted”
Doveryard Limited™

Crapers Farm Limited™

Dulacca Energy Project Co PTY Lid?

Dulacca Energy Project FinCo PTY LigH

Duiacca Energy Projest Holaco Co PTY Ligh?

Duiacca WFE Howoco PTY Ltd*?
Dyffryn Brodyn Limited™
Eakring Lirnied™

Elecsoi Camargue SARL®

rm

lecso! France 7 SARL®
Elecso’ France 11 SARL®
Elecsol France 15 SARL®

Elecso: France 19 SARL®

E R e N TR T

Country of Class of
_incorporation shares .
‘UK S Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
LJK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
LK Ordinary
LK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Qrdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
Australia Ordinary
Australia Ordinary
Australia Ordinary
Australia Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordmary
France Ordinary

Holding

Principal
activity

G R A ERL 0

100%
100%
100%
160%
1G0%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
160%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
S90%

90%

100%
100%

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy gereration

Development of
building projects

Construction of
domestic buildings

Development of
puilding projects

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy gereration
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Helding company
Energy gereration
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principalt
Name L incorporation shares Holding activity
Elecsol France 22 SARLY France Ordinary 100% Energy generatior
Elecsol France 24 SARL® fFrance Ordinary 1007% Energy generation
Elecsol France 25 SARLS France Ordinary i00% Energy generation
Elecscl Frarce 28 5AR? France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Flecsol Frarce 41 SARLY France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Flerscl Haut var SARL? France Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Eics Energy 2 France SAS® France Crdinary 100% Holding company
Eims Enargy 2 Lirnited UK Crdinary 10G% Holding compariy
Elics Enargy § France S5AS7 France Ordinary 100% Holding company
Elos Energy Hodings & Limmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Elios Energy riold mgs 3 Lirmited” LUK Ord nary 100% Holding company
Eios Energy broldimgs Lim ted” UK Ordinary 10C% Holding compary
Elics Renewable Erergy Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
1 structi
Elvia Developrnent Finance Dited™ UK Ordinary 1G0% Com‘ruct\orj O.f
domestic buildings
Ordinary = ial
Elvia Haidings Lirmited UK Deferred 100% hm‘adr}marserwc? N
Breference ©OINg companes
Sivia Homes (Centra’ Lirmited ! UK Crdnary  100%  Constuction of
domestic buildings
Elrvia Homes (Dormmant 2) Lirmited ™ UK Ordinary 100% COHSUU.CUO(? O.f
domestic buildings
" Con ion
Eivia Homes (Grarnase Rosd) urmred™ UK Grdinary 100% ~Onstruction O.f
domestic buildings
‘ . . el it of
Elvia Bormes (etley) Limited:: UK Ordinary  100%  Developmento
building projects
Elviz Hornes (Southem; Lim ted™ UK Ordinary 100% onstruction of
domestic buildings
E va Hores Suroiter) Limitea®? UK Crdinary 100% Conmucmrﬂ?f
domestic buildings
Elvia Homies L mitec!® UK Ordinary 150% Delvelopmerl“.t of
building projects
Evea Norr Sreregts UK Crdinary 100% Development of
building projects
Construction of
o . -
Elona Cxtord Lim -ed! UK Ordmary 100y Jomestic buildings
Buying and selling of
own real estate
Eivea Toutn L rmited™t UK Ordinary 100% Construction of

dornestic bulidings
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
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Elvia Soutmerr Linmted**

Eilcombea Levutes™

m

nergy Power Resources Lmited™”

EFR Ely Limitea™

EPR Eye Lmited”

EPRE Gariford uimited”

EFR Rerewaktle Energy Lomited”

EFR Scotiana L mited®™

PR Thetford Limited™

Furalyptus Energy Holgings Limited™

Eucalyotus Energy Limieg™

i

elvwell Erergy Lirmited””

Fern Energy Cour Holdings Limitec”
Fern Erergy Heldings Lrmited”

Fern Energy wirnited™

Fern Erergy Wird Hodings Limited™
Ferri Fibre Lirm:ted™

Fern Healthcare Holdings Limited™
Fern Infrastructure oimited™

Fern Renewable Energy Lirnited™
Fern Rooftop Solar (A) Lirmited™

Fern Rooftop Solar [(BBDY

Fern Rooftep Solar (Zestec) Limited™
Fern Trading Ceveloprnent Limited™

Fern Tracing Group Lirmited

Fern UK Power Developments Limited™

Firophos Limited™
Four Burrows Limited™

Fraisthorpe Wind Farm Limited™

Country of

incorporation

UK

LK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

Class of

shares

3 v, e d bR

Crdinary

Crdinary

Ordinary

Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
UK

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

sox gtz

Principal

Holding activity

100%

100%

100%

100%
160%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Construction of
domestic buildings

Buying and selling of

own real estate
Energy generation

Fnergy project
develcpment and
rnanagement
services

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generaticn
Holding company
Helding company
Hclding company
Holding company
Helding company
Holding company
Holding compary
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generaticn
Holding company
Holding cormpany
Holding company
Suppty of fertiliser
Energy gereration

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

Carlaff Energy Lt
Cigaret Flore Lid”

Gigaret Limited”

.l

Hayrnaker (Mount Milyiwd™
Fayrnaker (Natewood) Holoings: -
Haymaker (Natewood) Lta”
Haymaxer (Oarlandsy Hodings Lirmited™
Haymaier (OGailancds) Lid”

Helrn Power 2 Limited”

Heirn Power Limited™

bighes “naog farm Limited™

il Eng Farm Lirted™

Fallamocs Limited™

Full Reserve Power wmited”

Furst SPY 1 Limited”

Imrmingharn Power ormited™

irwell Power Limited™

Jamescn Roaz Erergy Liroeg”

Jurassic Fiore =aldings Limiteg™

Kirm Power Limrireg™

Lar gan Fewer Lmaae™
Lernam Scar umites”
Liztie 7 Scar iraied”
Liiveton Sc.ar Farma Limiten™

LLU Communicatons Lta”

Loodon Powe: | mited”

rred”

Country of

incorpqration

LK

UK

UK

UK
UK
Poland
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
1K
UK
UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK

UK

Holding activity R

Principal

Dormant company

Fibre network
production

Fibre network
praduction

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding compary
Energy generation
Holding compariy
Holding coripary
Erergy generatiorn
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Fibre netwark
production

Energy generalion
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Finre network
production

Class of

Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 160%
Ordinary 16C%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Crdinary 100%
Ordinary i00%
Ordinary 10C%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Crdinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Crdinary S0G%
Ordinary S0%
Crdinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Crdinary 10G%
Ordinary 100%
Ordmary 100%

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Lovegean Lismited™
Lurminance Solar Lomred™
M1z Sownons Limted”
fManstor Thorme Lirmited”
March Energy Limited™
Marden Power Limited”
Marley Tnatch Soiar Limited™
Meadows Farm Limited”
Melbourn Soar Limited”
Melton LG Erergy Lirnited™

Meton LG Hoding Limitec”™
Meltor LG ROC Limited”

Melton Fenewable Energy (Holdings) Limited™
Melton Renewanle Energy Newco Limiteq™
Meton Renewanie Energy U Limiteg

Mill Hil Farm Sclar Lirmiterd™

Mingay Farm Heloing L mited”

MSF Decoy wigd™

MSP Strete Ltgd™

MEP Tregassow Limited”

MTS Hatehlands Solar Lta™

Nevern Power Limited™

New Raw Farm Limited”

Mewlanags Solar Limiteg™

MNinnis Farrm Limited’™”

North Perrott Fruit Farrn Limited™
Maortwech Fower Limitea™

Notos Energy Lmited™

Cgmore Power Limited™

Oidhall Energy Recovery Howdings Lirriteg™

Cne Asnford Health<are L'mited

One Mathed Mospital - mited

Country of Class of
incorpogation sharesw
UK Ordinauary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
IJK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LK Ordinary

100%
100%
100%
100%
180%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
1060%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%

Principal

Holding activity

b i 27 O T

Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generaticn
Energy generat-on
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy gereration
Holding company
Holding compary

Asset leasing
company

Helding company
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Heiding company
Energy generation
Holding company

Provision of
healthcare services

Provision of
healthcare services
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

»»»»»» e o RERIRTI BT IR IR O S o aBARIEONOS

One Heaithcare Parirers Limited

Orta Wedgennl So ar Holdings Limited™
Orta Wedgenild Solar Jrmutes”™

Patreys garon Limited”™

Parziau Held ngs Limteg™

Sargiau Limited”

Park Broadband Limitea™

Pearrnat Solar 2 1d”

Eitchforg (Conaover Airtield & Stockoaton!

Lrnteg”

Pirs Farm umeed™
Fortbos Selar Limited”
Fyms Lare SGlar Ltd™

Ciugens Park Road Erergy Limited™

Rarigefore Care Limied™
Rangetord Cnertzey Limiied”
Rargeforg Crercester Lmited™

Rangeforz Dorking Limited™

Fangeford Holangs Limites”

RFangeford RAP Limited™

Rangeforg Rewrerrent Linrg —oldings wtd”

4

-
O

-

Rangeforn Stapleforo Limit

g

Reaches “arm Lmiten™
Rediaxe Power Lirs ted”™

Rystor bsmgic Lirmiten”

- 14
Sarmmat SARL

i

Country of

Class of

incorporation shares

sarzree

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
France

UK

UK

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Grdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Principal
Holding activity
85% Holding company
100% Holding company
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Holding company
100% Energy generation
100% F\brg neltvvork
production
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Erergy generation
100% Hotding company
106% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Care services for a
retirement village
190% R{et\remem vilkage
development
+y Y VHIE
100% Retrement village
development
100% Retirement viliage
developrnent
100% Holding company
Ret illage
100% Retrement village
development
100% Retirerment village
develcpment
100% Halding company
100% Retirerment v'llage
development
1006% Lnergy generation
160% Erergy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
10G% Energy generation
100% Fibre netwaork

proguction
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of
Nazpe” o incorporation shares
Sngrug Holdings Limited™ UK Ordinary
Sengrug Lirmided™ UK Qrdinary
Six Hills Lans (Ragdate) Limited™ LUK Ordinary
Skelbrocke Energy Limited” UK Ordinary
Sanghtergare bimeed” LK Ordinary
Snetterten Renewsable Power Fueis Limited™ UK Ordinary
Snetterton Renewable Power Holaings Limited™ UK Crdinary
Snetterton Rerewable Power Limited™ UK Ordinary
Sclar LPO8 Safe 4 France Crdinary
Solarf SPOL SARL? France Qrdinary
Solarfi SPOZ SaRL® France Crdinary
Solarf: SFO4 SaR(*® France Crdinary
Solarh SPOS SARLS France Ordinary
Solarfi SPO8 SaRL? France Crdinary
Solarfi SFLO SARL® France Ordinary
Southcombe Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary
St Asaph Power Lirmited” UK Ordinary
Steadfast Parkhouse Soiar Limited ™ UK Ordinary
Steadfast Rudge Solar Lto” UK Ordinary
Steadfast Shiston Belinger Solar Limted™ LUK Ordinary
Steliar Power Limited™ UK Ordinary
Sroneyhil Erergy Limiteg? UK Ordinary
Sulis Erergy Limited” UK Ordinary
Summerston Erergy Limited® UK Ordinary
Sunley Crayfern Lavant LLP™* UK NA
Swish Fibre Conrracting Limited® UK Ordinary
Swish Fibre Lirmyted® K Ordinary
Swish Fibra Natworks Lto® UK Ordinary
Swich Fibre Senvces Limited?® UK Ordinary
Swish F:bre Yarkshire® UK Ordinary
Swaish Trading Limited™ LK Ordinary

Holding activity

PR

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
50%

100%

80%

160%

0%

Principal

Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Supply of biomass
fuel

Holding company
Energy generation
Energy gereration
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Dormant company
Holding cormpany
Energy generation
NA

Fibre network
production

Holding company

Fibre network
production

Fibre netwark
production

Fibre network
production

Holding company

R IS B RS 0 o

T
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

TGC Soiar 102 Liruted™
TGC Solar 107 Lirmted”

TGO Sotar 8 imitea”

TGC Sotar 83 Lirnited™

The Fern Power Corrpany Limieg™
The Hodes Solar Farm Limited™

Thoresby Zstate (Ruaby) Limited™

TrEngnarn Power Limirted™
Todhils Erergy Lmitea”
Tredown Farm Lirien’’
Turves Soar Lireced”

LJHSE 15 Solar wrmited”

United Mines Energy L rrited™

WOSE LT

Viciona Solar Lirnited™
Voners Erergy Lirmted
Yinf Liritea’
Vortafrarce G1 SARLY
Veitafrance 05 SAPLY
Voltafrance 13 SARL"
Vouafrarce SARL!
Vorpess Lirited™

Vorboss US inc®

Wadsws ck Green L =a”

Warnington Power Limited™

Waterlae Sclar Park —olamgs Ui ed”

Waterlco Sciar Park - meaed”

VWeek Farm 2 _mated”
Weastwooo Sower Lirmuted™

Westwons Soar reted

Wadswick Greer Sronarty Services Limited™

Country of

incorporation

s B SR H B £ 10

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK
UK

UK

France
France
France
France

UK

USA

UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

Class of
shares

Ofdmar:;
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordimnary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary

Qrdinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Qrdinary

Ordinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Qrdinary

COrdinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Grdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Holding ac;ivity

100%
100%
1007%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

106%

100%

Principal

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fibre newwaork
production

Energy generation
Holding cormpany

Fibre network
production

Ernergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Fibre natwork
production

Reurement village
operator

Service charge
administrator

Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Erergy generation

L A¥andn s e BRRaB by
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal :
Name s e o mcorporation  shares Holding activity = e %
’Dﬂth;ra@fEmerg; |fr teu - o UK“ Crdinary 100% Energy generation 1
Wharf fower Lirmted" UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Whiddon Farm Limted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation ;
Whinney Hill Energy Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation ;
Wincelie Sclar Held ngs Lirmmted™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company 1
Wolverharmpton Power Lid™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wryde Croft Wing Farm Limited™™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation ;
WEE Bradiford Lirr.ted” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation ;
WSE Hullavington sold ngs Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
WEE Hullawngtor Lmited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn :
WSE Pare Wal Lirrted” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Pyde Drove Lim'ted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaton
Zestec Asset Management Lirniteq™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Acquired after year end Date
Fern Roofiop Solar (BBD) Lmited T T oosr2022
Cuckoo Internet Lid 31/08/2022
Virrifi Digital L mited 13/07/2022
400 Lirvted 2211112022

‘Subsigiares exeript from audit oy virlue of s480A of the Comparies Act 2006
“Subsidiaries exempt from audit by virtue of s479A of the Companies Act 2004
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Dlssolved or sold durmg the year and up untll sigmng Date

20/07/2021
Rigge Wind Acguisition Limited 2010712021
Fern Erergy RidgeW.rd Acouisibons Limited 14/G8/2021
Fern tnergy RidgeW ng Hodings Lrmteg 21/0%/2021
Fere crergy Partinersnips Holdings Limied 21/09/2021
Frasthorpe (Holding! Limmited 29/03/2022

DY Cidhall Erergy Recovery Limiteg 13/09/2022
Commzi Lig 15/08/2022
Daringron Point Holdeo Pty Lired G8/07/2022
Carlingror Peint Scrar Farm Pry Limited 08/07/2022

sarlngior Point Subhaldco Pty Urnited 08/07/2022
Mord.c Sower Develeprrent Lmitad 231272021
VCynr‘.kaﬂgas Yind ~anm Oy 23112/2021

aunarmas Windg Farmm Oy 2301272021

g n heemen TR R e TRy FE2E sy e S S T S U = S
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Fern’s share price has performed in line with targets

Fern Tradrig Limited is an unlisied company Every month, our Board of Orectors agrees a price at which it
wilt be willing 0 'ssue new shares. Tne share price is unaugited

The figures below incluge ine share prce of the previcus parent Inow Fern Trad ng Group Lmited) as well
as this entify

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited

1%
1.8
17
i6
15
14
13
12

11
10

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Performrance 1s calcuiated based on the sale price for Fern's shares at 2 Jure each year The share price is
nCh suDject to audit by trnst & Young LLP.

Annual discrete performance

Financial Year Discrete share price performance

June 2021 22 9.91%
June 2020-21 7 4.87% -
JunesOl9 20 033%
Jurne 2018-19 6.23%
Jwezotzig . 108%
June 201617 - . 5.54%
June 2d15;16 7 | - 3.83%
June 2013-14. 3;72%
JL;HE 2‘012713 N ‘ 3.9'}%

Jurie 2011-12 1.02%

Source Jctoous Investments Limited, 2 Jure 7027
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Directors and advisers

Liractors ! Hagistered office

PS Latham i &th Fioorn 33 Riotkarn, ;
K Wolley 5
PG Barlow
T Artrur tagported 1 July 20 tndasperdent auditors

¢ Ernst & Yourng LLE )

Forward-looking statements

This Anrual Renar contains ¢ertan forward-looking statements related 1o the Company's “uture business

and fina~cial performarce and future events Or ae Tents. These statenents are basea on the currens
«nawledge and expectations of managemart and are subject o assamplions, rsks and uncertaintes, sems=
-~

Comoany ACZodingly, no asswrance can
Y pe met and forwarc. ocking statements regarding past trends or

ot which are related W0 facte-s that are bayond the contrni oF the

be glvtﬂ” trat any particular expecianc wi

y s ton that suck trenads or acty tes will cortinue o e future Pass
erformanc nnot pe relied on as a quide to fut.re perform ree, Mothing i thes Arrual Report shioula e !

(‘VO

onsirued as & profit forecas:
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